
HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 25th, 2022 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(CLICK ON EACH AGENDA ITEM TO NAVIGATE TO THAT SECTION) 

AGENDA   Page 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT   Page 4 

4/27/22 MINUTES   Page 6 

PUBLIC HEARING    Page 10 
Regarding the update of the Fiscal Year 2023 PHA annual plan 

ORDER 22-25-02-01H         Page 94 
In the Matter of Accepting a Bid and Awarding Contract #22-C-0016 
for the Lindeborg Siding & Paint Project 

PRESENTATION     Page 100 
Equitable Contracting Initiative 



AGENDA 
Homes for Good Housing Agency 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Location of the meeting: 
This meeting will be conducted via public video call and conference line (see details below). 

Wednesday, May 25th, 2022 at 1:30pm 

To prevent the spread of COVID-19 Homes for Good will be conducting the Wednesday, May 25th, 2022 
meeting via a public video call with dial-in capacity. The public will be able to join the call, give public 
comment, and listen to the call: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7427507154?pwd=bkFDWVZjeU9LSjZGR0J0RHF3TUNEUT09 

Meeting ID: 742 750 7154 
Passcode: HFGBoard22 

One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,7427507154#,,,,*1269327372# US (Tacoma)

Dial by your location 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

1. PUBLIC HEARING– 10 Minutes
Homes for Good Housing Agency will hold its public hearing regarding the update of the Fiscal Year
2023 PHA annual plan.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – 20 Minutes
(Maximum time 20 minutes: Speakers will be taken in the order in which they sign up and will be limited
to 3-minutes per public comments. If the number wishing to testify exceeds 10 speakers, then additional
speakers may be allowed if the chair determines that time permits or may be taken at a later time.)

3. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES AND
REMONSTRANCE (2 min. limit per commissioner)

4. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA

5. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS

6. EMERGENCY BUSINESS

7. ADMINISTRATION

A. Executive Director Report (Estimated 10 Minutes)

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7427507154?pwd=bkFDWVZjeU9LSjZGR0J0RHF3TUNEUT09


Page 2 of 2 
 

B. Approval of 4/27/22 Board Meeting Minutes (Estimated time 5 minutes) 
 

C. ORDER 22-25-02-01H In the Matter of Accepting a Bid and Awarding Contract #22-C-0016 
for the Lindeborg Siding & Paint Project. (Steve Ochs, Real Estate Development Director) 
(Estimated time 5 minutes) 

 
D. PRESENTATION- Equitable Contracting Initiative (Steve Ochs, Real Estate Development 

Director) (Estimated time 15 minutes)  
 
8.  OTHER BUSINESS 
  

Adjourn. 
 

 
 
 
 



 

M A Y  2 0 2 2EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

On May 6th, we received the intent to bargain 

letter from our AFSCME Local 3267. As we 

navigated the COVID-19 pandemic over the 

past two years, we met either weekly or bi- 

weekly, and the exchange of information and 

ideas from the leaders from our local and our 

AFSCME representative have been very 

helpful. We will begin bargaining soon and 

have already scheduled a meeting to develop 

ground rules. At the same time we are 

bargaining, we will be completing a 

compensation study for management 

positions. Both bargaining and the 

compensation study will be factored into our 

labor costs as we complete our FY23 budget 

this summer.  

I'm delighted to report that Esteban has been 

selected to be a 2022-2023 American 

Leadership Forum (ALF) of Oregon Fellow in 

Class 41. Numerous leaders in our community 

and across the State of Oregon have 

graduated from this program and now serve 

as ALF Senior Fellows, which requires an 

ongoing commitment to supporting other 

Senior Fellows as well as recommending new 

ALF fellows. I'm a Senior Fellow and 

graduated in Class 34 and it was my honor to 

recommend Esteban. Esteban will spend the 

coming year growing his skills in adaptive 

leadership, equity/inclusion strategies, and 

systems building. This honor reflects 

Esteban's leadership acumen and his growth 

trajectory as a leader. Please join me in 

congratulating Esteban for being accepted in 

ALF Class 41.  

In September, the City of Eugene will be soliciting 

development proposals for the 3 acre Naval 

Reserve site, which is near 13th and Chambers 

and directly adjacent to Caesar Chavez elementary 

school. Homes for Good has a vision of building an 

affordable housing apartment community focused 

on families with children that will include and early 

learning hub and childcare. We have formed a 

project team that includes John Stapleton from 

Pivot Architecture, Judy Newman from Early 

Childhood Cares, Annie Soto from Head Start of 

Lane County and Cheryl Henderson from Lane 

Community College. We have had two, well 

attended, meetings with the Jefferson Westside 

Neighborhood Association and there is excitement 

and support for our vision.  



 

M A Y  2 0 2 2EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

As we all know, Homes for Good is growing 

rapidly as an organization. This growth is the 

result of requests from national, state, and 

local jurisdictions to support new 

programmatic priorities and funding 

allocations. In some cases, especially in Lane 

County, if we had not stepped up, these 

jurisdictions would not have been successful in 

distributing funding allocations and achieving 

policy priorities, such as for developing 

Permanent Supportive Housing apartment 

communities. We now need to make sure our 

organizational systems are calibrated to 

administer the new programs and funding in 

an equitable way.
In an effort to maximize the number and 

diversity of candidates, we have decide to extend 

the deadline for application to the Homes for 

Good Board of Commissioners to May 31st . We 

will review applications and complete interviews 

by mid-June, and will make recommendations to 

the Lane County Board of Commissioners on 

either July 12th or July 19th. The first meeting of 

the newly appointed Homes for Good Board will 

be in late July. As of May 12,  we have 14 

completed applications and 24 applications that 

are in progress.   

In an effort to review and optimize our 

organizational systems, we issued a Request 

for Proposals in February and received three 

proposals. All three proposals were high 

quality and we have decided to enter into 

contract with all three consulting teams. The 

initial step will be to negotiate general 

professional services contracts with the three 

teams and then work with these teams to 

scope and budget the specific organizational 

development projects that we need support 

on. A Division of Moss Adams is one team that 

we will be working with, and their initial focus 

will be assessing our Accounting/Finance 

Department's systems and staffing. Tusk 

Consulting will be working with our 

management team to enhance data driven 

performance initiatives and succession 

planning. Governance Leadership Solutions 

initial focus will be supporting the onboarding 

and team building with our new governance 

board.        



MINUTES 
Homes for Good Housing Agency     
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
Location of the meeting: 
This meeting will be conducted via public video call and conference line (see details below). 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Wednesday, April 27th 2022 at 1:30pm 
 
To prevent the spread of COVID-19 Homes for Good will conducted the April 27th, 2022 meeting via a 
public video call with dial-in capacity. The public was able to join the call, give public comment, and listen 
to the call. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Board Members present: Char Reavis, Michelle Thurston, Laurie Trieger, Joe Berney, Jay 
Bozievich, Pat Farr 
Board Members absent: Heather Buch 
 
1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 
2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES AND 
REMONSTRANCE 
 
None. 
 
3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Results and Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Plan presentation by Moss Adams and 
presentation of Q2 Homes for Good staff excellence awards moved to be conducted before the Executive 
Director’s Report. 
 
4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS 
 
Joe Berney: Since I felt slightly chastised by our Board at our last meeting: if you recall, there was a 
vote taken on codifying the Homes for Good Board changes in the Lane County Manual. Commissioner 
Farr-Chair Farr- excuse me, was not at that meeting. I've learned from him and others of Robert's Rules 
of Order, and I want to admit that I learned from Commissioner Trieger. I hesitate to admit this, that 
she pointed out to me that what I thought we were voting on was not in fact what we were voting on, 
that we were only voting to codify the changes that the Board of Commissioners -the Lane County Board 
of Commissioners, not the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners- had already approved in September. 
So as a member of the minority, I was able to bring that up for a re-vote and I think you all know, I 
hope you all know, that the Lane County Board of Commissioners then, with Chair Farr present, voted in 
the majority to approve codifying it and Homes for Good is off and running in developing its new Board. 
And I just wanted to apologize to the group for my misunderstanding and thank Commissioner Trieger 
for schooling me. Thank you. 

 

 



Commissioner Farr: I just wanted to say this, one of the things that happens when you’re a Board 
member, is that the members of the public who know that you are, ask you questions that you don't 
know the answer to, that only staff can really answer. So, we rely as Board members on staff, and in 
particular, the one staff member that we hired, which is the Executive Director, to answer questions for 
us and to make things happen. And that's happened to me a number of times. I wanted to point out that 
throughout this month, there was one individual who contacted me several times and had some difficulty 
in that she could not address. I'm not going to go into too much detail about this right now, but it was a 
matter of transferring vouchers from one agency, in fact from one county to another county. And I called 
our Executive Director, Jacob Fox, and I want to tell you that he handled it personally, giving me names, 
so that along the way, I could really ease this person's tension that they were not going to get evicted, 
which was this person's main fear, and ultimately the individual quit contacting me, which to me is often 
the sign of success. So, I did confirm that the Homes for Good did take care of the issue. When we call 
Jacob, Jacob answers, Jacob makes it happen, and Jacob has a staff to back him up doing that. I want 
to thank you for that, Jacob, out loud and in the public that you are there, each time I personally have 
called you, each time I personally have contacted you, you've been there to solve the problem. Way to 
go, man. 

 
5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
6. ADMINISTRATION  
 

A. PRESENTATION — Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Results and Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Plan.  
 
Kevin Mullerleile and Amanda McCleary-Moore of Moss Adams reported on Homes for Good 2020 audit 
results and determined that there were no significant findings. Discussed the Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Plan 
and the June 30th, 2022 deadline for completion. No action needed.  

 
B. PRESENTATION — Q2 Homes for Good Staff Excellence Awards 

 
Office Assistant Latoya Davis and Real Estate Specialist Becky Bertrand were announced as the recipients 
of the Second Quarter Homes for Good Staff Excellence Awards. Portfolio Manager Andrea Bishop gave 
remarks regarding Becky Bertrand, and Rent Assistance Division Director Beth Ochs gave remarks on 
Latoya Davis. No action needed.   

C. Executive Director Report  
 
Jacob Fox discusses new requirements of Section 3 Program that include creating employment 
opportunities and small business contracting opportunities for people served by Homes for Good.  
 
Jacob Fox discusses the Commons on MLK need for operations funding and the ongoing discussions 
with Lane County.  
 
Jacob Fox provides an update of the change of governance for Homes for Good and the opening of the 
application process with the goal of seating a new Board of Commissioners in July.  
 
 
       D. Approval of 3/30/22 Board Meeting Minutes  
 

Motion: Michelle Thurston 



Second: Laurie Trieger 
VOTE 
Ayes: Char Reavis, Michelle Thurston, Laurie Trieger, Joe Berney, Jay 
Bozievich, Pat Farr 
Nays: None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Heather Buch 

 
The minutes are approved _6_/_0_.  

 
E. ORDER 22-27-04-01H — In the Matter of Obtaining a Board Resolution to Approve the 

Submission of the Move to Work Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) Amendment to the Public 
Housing and Housing Choice Voucher ACCs  
 

Beth Ochs gave presentation on the seven-step process to implement the Move to Work program. 
Discussed how Board approval is one step, and that Homes for Good would also need a public process 
to create the MTW supplement, update the software, coordinate with the HUD cohort for evaluation 
team, and then receive HUD approval of the Move to Work supplement.  

Commissioner Thurston: Just a quick question. What does the public process step look like?  
 
Beth Ochs: It looks similar to the process that we go through for the annual plan in the ACOP, where 
we draft a document that says, "Here's what our intentions are that we would like to implement for Move 
to Work waivers," and then we engage in a public hearing process and engagement with the RAB, and 
then gather that feedback and then make modifications before it's submitted to HUD for final approval. 

 
Motion: Michelle Thurston 
Second: Laurie Trieger 
VOTE 
Ayes: Char Reavis, Michelle Thurston, Laurie Trieger, Joe Berney, Jay 
Bozievich, Pat Farr 
Nays: None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Heather Buch 

 
Order 22-27-04-01H is approved _6_/_0_.  

 
F. ORDER 22-27-04-02H — In the Matter of Updating the Housing Choice Voucher Administrative 

Plan, Project Based Voucher Local Preferences (Beth Ochs, Rent Assistance Division Director)  
 
Beth Ochs discusses the need for updating the Homes for Good Administrative Plan as it pertains to 
Project Based Section 8 vouchers for The Nel. Informed the Board that as Laurel Hill is the supportive 
services partner for this development, Homes for good needs to formalize the MOU that gives local 
preference to Laurel Hills for their referrals.  

 
Motion: Laurie Trieger 
Second: Michelle Thurston 
VOTE 
Ayes: Char Reavis, Michelle Thurston, Laurie Trieger, Joe Berney, Jay 
Bozievich, Pat Farr 



Nays: None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Heather Buch 

 
Order 22-27-04-02H is approved _6_/_0_.  

 
  

7. OTHER BUSINESS  
 
None.  
 
Meeting adjourned.

 





ANNUAL PLAN FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2023

5 4 1 - 6 8 2 - 3 7 5 5     

w w w . h o m e s f o r g o o d . o r g 

1 0 0   W e s t  1 3 t h  A v e n u e , E u g e n e , O R 9 7 4 0 1 



 
 

Homes for Good PHA Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2023 
 

Homes for Good Housing Agency is updating its PHA Annual Plan. This plan guides the planning and 
implementation of federal programs under the jurisdiction of the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
for the period beginning October 1, 2022. The federal programs related to housing and other needs for low-
income persons covered by the Agency Plans include, but are not limited to, Capital Fund, Section 8 and Public 
Housing Admission policies, Self Sufficiency, and Resident participation.  
 
The public examination and comment period begins Friday May 2, 2022 and ends Monday, June 
20, 2022. There will be a public hearing on May 25, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. via Zoom. 
 
Topic: May Board Meeting  
Time: May 25, 2022 01:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7427507154?pwd=bkFDWVZjeU9LSjZGR0J0RHF3TUNEUT09  
 
Meeting ID: 742 750 7154 
Passcode: HFGBoard22 
One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,7427507154#,,,,*1269327372# US (Tacoma) 
+13462487799,,7427507154#,,,,*1269327372# US (Houston) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        877 853 5257 US Toll-free 
        888 475 4499 US Toll-free 
        833 548 0276 US Toll-free 
 
Comments may be presented in person during this meeting, or in writing as noted below. The draft plans and 
all supporting documents may be viewed at Homes for Good Service Center 100 West 13th Ave Eugene, OR 
97401 and on our website at homesforgood.org 
 
If you have any questions regarding the plans or would like to submit any written comments, 
please contact Melanie Church, Compliance & Data Analyst; at 100 West 13th Ave Eugene, OR 
97401, mchurch@homesforgood.org or 541-682-2588. If you need a reasonable accommodation in 
regard to this meeting, please call 541-682-2588 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting time. 
 
The Agency is an equal opportunity employer and complies with State and Federal laws and regulations relating 
to the 1973 Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, and the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the 2009 
ADA Amendments Act (ADAAA). Homes for Good does not discriminate on the basis of disability status in the 
admission or access to its federally assisted programs or activities.  
 



Streamlined Annual 
PHA Plan  
(High Performer PHAs) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing 

OMB No. 2577-0226 
Expires 03/31/2024  

                                                        
 

 
 

Page 1 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 

 
   
 

 
 
 
 
Purpose.  The 5-Year and Annual PHA Plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic PHA policies, rules, and requirements concerning the 
PHA’s operations, programs, and services, including changes to these policies, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the public of 
the PHA’s mission, goals and objectives for serving the needs of low- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families 
 
Applicability. The Form HUD-50075-HP is to be completed annually by High Performing PHAs.  PHAs that meet the definition of a Standard PHA, 
Troubled PHA, HCV-Only PHA, Small PHA, or Qualified PHA do not need to submit this form.  

 
Definitions.   
 
(1) High-Performer PHA – A PHA that owns or manages more than 550 combined public housing units and housing choice vouchers and was designated as 

a high performer on both the most recent Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) and Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) 
assessments. 

(2) Small PHA - A PHA that is not designated as PHAS or SEMAP troubled, and that owns or manages less than 250 public housing units and any number 
of vouchers where the total combined units exceed 550. 

(3) Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Only PHA - A PHA that administers more than 550 HCVs, was not designated as troubled in its most recent SEMAP 
assessment and does not own or manage public housing.   

(4) Standard PHA - A PHA that owns or manages 250 or more public housing units and any number of vouchers where the total combined units exceed 550, 
and that was designated as a standard performer in the most recent PHAS or SEMAP assessments. 

(5) Troubled PHA - A PHA that achieves an overall PHAS or SEMAP score of less than 60 percent. 
(6) Qualified PHA - A PHA with 550 or fewer public housing dwelling units and/or housing choice vouchers combined and is not PHAS or SEMAP 

troubled.   
 

 
A.  

 
PHA Information. 
 

 
A.1 

 
PHA Name:  __________Homes for Good Housing Agency________________________ PHA Code: ___OR006____________ 
PHA Type:       High Performer      
PHA Plan for Fiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY): _10/01/2022_  
PHA Inventory (Based on Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) units at time of FY beginning, above)  
Number of Public Housing (PH) Units ____595______     Number of Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs) _____3199_________ 
Total Combined ___3794__________ 
PHA Plan Submission Type:   Annual Submission                   Revised Annual Submission  
 
Availability of Information.  In addition to the items listed in this form, PHAs must have the elements listed below readily available to the public.  
A PHA must identify the specific location(s) where the proposed PHA Plan, PHA Plan Elements, and all information relevant to the public hearing 
and proposed PHA Plan are available for inspection by the public.  Additionally, the PHA must provide information on how the public may 
reasonably obtain additional information of the PHA policies contained in the standard Annual Plan but excluded from their streamlined 
submissions.  At a minimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans, including updates, at each Asset Management Project (AMP) and main office or central 
office of the PHA.  PHAs are strongly encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on their official website.  PHAs are also encouraged to provide each 
resident council a copy of their PHA Plans.   
 
The Plan and Plan Elements are available the AMP 100 office at Laurelwood Homes, AMP 200 office at McKenzie Village, AMP 300 office at 
Maplewood Meadows, and AMPs 500 & 600 offices at Riverview Terrace. Home for Good's administrative offices are now located in a new 
building at 100 W 13th Ave Eugene, OR 97401. 
 
 

 PHA Consortia:  (Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete table below)   

Participating PHAs PHA Code Program(s) in the Consortia Program(s) not in the 
Consortia 

No. of Units in Each Program 

PH HCV 
Lead PHA:  

 
 
 

 
 

  

 
 

     

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 
 

  

  

 
B. 
 

 
Plan Elements  

 
B.1 

 
Revision of Existing PHA Plan Elements.   
 
(a)  Have the following PHA Plan elements been revised by the PHA since its last Annual PHA Plan submission? 
 
Y    N  

    Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs.     
    Deconcentration and Other Policies that Govern Eligibility, Selection, and Admissions.     
    Financial Resources.  
    Rent Determination.        
    Homeownership Programs.     
    Safety and Crime Prevention.  
    Pet Policy.        
    Substantial Deviation.   
    Significant Amendment/Modification  

 
(b) If the PHA answered yes for any element, describe the revisions for each element below: 
 
(c)  The PHA must submit its Deconcentration Policy for Field Office Review. 
 
See Attachment B.1 Revision of PHA Plan Elements 
See Attachment B.1.a Key Modifications ACOP FY23 
See Attachment B.1.b Key Modifications Admin Plan FY23 
 
 

 
B.2 

 
 

 
New Activities.  
 
(a)  Does the PHA intend to undertake any new activities related to the following in the PHA’s current Fiscal Year?  
 
 Y    N    

    Hope VI or Choice Neighborhoods.   
    Mixed Finance Modernization or Development. 
    Demolition and/or Disposition. 
    Conversion of Public Housing to Tenant Based Assistance. 
    Conversion of Public Housing to Project-Based Rental Assistance or Project-Based Vouchers under RAD.  
    Project Based Vouchers. 
    Units with Approved Vacancies for Modernization. 
    Other Capital Grant Programs (i.e., Capital Fund Community Facilities Grants or Emergency Safety and Security Grants).  

 
(b) If any of these activities are planned for the current Fiscal Year, describe the activities.  For new demolition activities, describe any public 
housing development or portion thereof, owned by the PHA for which the PHA has applied or will apply for demolition and/or disposition approval 
under section 18 of the 1937 Act under the separate demolition/disposition approval process. If using Project-Based Vouchers (PBVs), provide the 
projected number of project-based units and general locations, and describe how project basing would be consistent with the PHA Plan. 
 

 
B.3 

 
Progress Report.  
 
Provide a description of the PHA’s progress in meeting its Mission and Goals described in the PHA 5-Year Plan. 
 
See Attachment B.3 Progress Report 



 

Page 3 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 
 

  

 
B.4. 

 
Capital Improvements. Include a reference here to the most recent HUD-approved 5-Year Action Plan in EPIC and the date that it was approved. 
 
See HUD Form 50075.2 approved by HUD on 08/02/2021 

 
 B.5 

 
Most Recent Fiscal Year Audit.   
 

(a) Were there any findings in the most recent FY Audit?   
 
Y    N    

     
 

(a) If yes, please describe: The Agency’s request for an extension of time to deliver the audit report was granted on four occasions. The final 
extension was granted until February 28, 2022, and the audit report was not filed with the Oregon Secretary of State until March 8, 2022. 
As a result, the audit report was filed eight days late with the Oregon Secretary of State. 
 
This finding was reported based upon the auditor’s work performed in conformity with Oregon minimum audit standards. This is not a 
Federal audit compliance finding. 

 
 
C. 
 

Other Document and/or Certification Requirements. 

 
C.1 
 

 
Resident Advisory Board (RAB) Comments.    
 
(a)  Did the RAB(s) have comments to the PHA Plan?  
 
Y     N    

     
 

(b) If yes, comments must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA Plan.  PHAs must also include a narrative describing their 
analysis of the RAB recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations. 

 
 
C.2 

Certification by State or Local Officials.  
 
Form HUD-50077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated Plan, must be submitted by the 
PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan. 
 

 
C.3 

 
Civil Rights Certification/Certification Listing Policies and Programs that the PHA has Revised since Submission of its Last Annual Plan. 
 
Form 50077-ST-HCV-HP, PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations  
Including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed must be submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan. 
 

 
C.4 

 
Challenged Elements. If any element of the PHA Plan is challenged, a PHA must include such information as an attachment with a description of 
any challenges to Plan elements, the source of the challenge, and the PHA’s response to the public. 
 

(a) Did the public challenge any elements of the Plan? 
Y     N    

     
                  
 If yes, include Challenged Elements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/forms/files/50077sl.doc


 

Page 4 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 
 

  

 
 

 

 
D. 

 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH).  
 

 
D.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. 
 
Provide a statement of the PHA’s strategies and actions to achieve fair housing goals outlined in an accepted Assessment of Fair Housing 
(AFH) consistent with 24 CFR § 5.154(d)(5). Use the chart provided below.  (PHAs should add as many goals as necessary to overcome fair 
housing issues and contributing factors.)  Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA is not obligated to complete 
this chart.  The PHA will fulfill, nevertheless, the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) enacted prior to August 17, 2015. See Instructions for 
further detail on completing this item.  
 

Fair Housing Goal: 
 
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal   
 
 
 
 
 

 

Fair Housing Goal: 
 
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal   
 
 
 
 
 

 

Fair Housing Goal: 
 
Describe fair housing strategies and actions to achieve the goal  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

Page 5 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 
 

  

  



 

Page 6 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 
 

  

Instructions for Preparation of Form HUD-50075-HP 
Annual Plan for High Performing PHAs 
 
A. PHA Information. All PHAs must complete this section. (24 CFR §903.4)    

 
A.1  Include the full PHA Name, PHA Code, PHA Type, PHA Fiscal Year Beginning (MM/YYYY), PHA Inventory, Number of Public Housing Units and 

or Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs), PHA Plan Submission Type, and the Availability of Information, specific location(s) of all information relevant 
to the public hearing and proposed PHA Plan. (24 CFR §903.23(4)(e))   

 
  PHA Consortia: Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete the table. (24 CFR §943.128(a))   
 
B.      Plan Elements.   
 

B.1 Revision of Existing PHA Plan Elements. PHAs must: 
 

 Identify specifically which plan elements listed below that have been revised by the PHA. To specify which elements have been revised, mark the “yes” box. 
If an element has not been revised, mark “no."  

 
  Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs.  Provide a statement addressing the housing needs of low-income, very 

low-income and extremely low-income families and a brief description of the PHA’s strategy for addressing the housing needs of families who reside in the 
jurisdiction served by the PHA and other families who are on the public housing and Section 8 tenant-based assistance waiting lists. The statement must 
identify the housing needs of (i) families with incomes below 30 percent of area median income (extremely low-income); (ii) elderly families  (iii) 
households with individuals  with disabilities, and households of various races and ethnic groups residing in the jurisdiction or on the public housing and 
Section 8 tenant-based assistance waiting lists based on information provided by the applicable Consolidated Plan, information provided by HUD, and other 
generally available data. The statement of housing needs shall be based on information provided by the applicable Consolidated Plan, information provided 
by HUD, and generally available data.  The identification of housing needs must address issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, size of units, 
and location. Once the PHA has submitted an Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH), which includes an assessment of disproportionate housing needs in 
accordance with 24 CFR §5.154(d)(2)(iv), information on households with individuals with disabilities and households of various races and ethnic groups 
residing in the jurisdiction or on the waiting lists no longer needs to be included in the Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing 
Needs. (24 CFR §903.7(a).  
 
The identification of housing needs must address issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, size of units, and location. (24 CFR §903.7(a)(2)(i))  
Provide a description of the ways in which the PHA intends, to the maximum extent practicable, to address those housing needs in the upcoming year and 
the PHA’s reasons for choosing its strategy.   (24 CFR §903.7(a)(2)(ii))   

 
  Deconcentration and Other Policies that Govern Eligibility, Selection and Admissions.  Describe the PHA’s admissions policy for deconcentration 

of poverty and income mixing of lower-income families in public housing.  The Deconcentration Policy must describe the PHA’s policy for bringing higher 
income tenants into lower income developments and lower income tenants into higher income developments.  The deconcentration requirements apply to 
general occupancy and family public housing developments.  Refer to 24 CFR §903.2(b)(2) for developments not subject to deconcentration of poverty and 
income mixing requirements. 24 CFR §903.7(b)  Describe the PHA’s procedures for maintaining waiting lists for admission to public housing and address 
any site-based waiting lists. 24 CFR §903.7(b) A statement of the PHA’s policies that govern resident or tenant eligibility, selection and admission including 
admission preferences for both public housing and HCV.  (24 CFR §903.7(b) Describe the unit assignment policies for public housing.  24 CFR §903.7(b) 
 

  Financial Resources.  A statement of financial resources, including a listing by general categories, of the PHA’s anticipated resources, such as PHA 
operating, capital and other anticipated Federal resources available to the PHA, as well as tenant rents and other income available to support public housing 
or tenant-based assistance.  The statement also should include the non-Federal sources of funds supporting each Federal program, and state the planned use 
for the resources. (24 CFR §903.7(c) 

 
  Rent Determination.  A statement of the policies of the PHA governing rents charged for public housing and HCV dwelling units, including applicable 

public housing flat rents, minimum rents, voucher family rent contributions, and payment standard policies. (24 CFR §903.7(d) 
 

  Homeownership Programs.  A description of any homeownership programs  (including project number and unit count) administered by the agency or 
for which the PHA has applied or will apply for approval.  For years in which the PHA’s 5-Year PHA Plan is also due, this information must be included 
only to the extent that the PHA participates in homeownership programs under section 8(y) of the 1937 Act.  (24 CFR §903.7(k) and 24 CFR §903.12(b). 
 

  Safety and Crime Prevention (VAWA).  A description of:  1) Any activities, services, or programs provided or offered by an agency, either directly or 
in partnership with other service providers, to child or adult victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking; 2) Any activities, 
services, or programs provided or offered by a PHA that helps child and adult victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, to 
obtain or maintain housing; and 3) Any activities, services, or programs provided or offered by a public housing agency to prevent domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, and stalking, or to enhance victim safety in assisted families. (24 CFR §903.7(m)(5))     
 

  Pet Policy.   Describe the PHA’s policies and requirements pertaining to the ownership of pets in public housing. (24 CFR §903.7(n))        
 

  Substantial Deviation.  PHA must provide its criteria for determining a “substantial deviation” to its 5-Year Plan.  (24 CFR §903.7(r)(2)(i)    
 

  Significant Amendment/Modification.  PHA must provide its criteria for determining a “Significant Amendment or Modification” to its 5-Year and 
Annual Plan. For modifications resulting from the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program, refer to the ‘Sample PHA Plan Amendment’ found in 
Notice PIH-2012-32 REV-3, successor RAD Implementation Notices, or other RAD Notices. 

 
  If any boxes are marked “yes”, describe the revision(s) to those element(s) in the space provided. 
 

http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.14
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=cc31cf1c3a2b84ba4ead75d35d258f67&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.10&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.10.2.5.7
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5


 

Page 7 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 
 

  

PHAs must submit a Deconcentration Policy for Field Office review.  For additional guidance on what a PHA must do to deconcentrate poverty in its 
development and comply with fair housing requirements, see 24 CFR 903.2. (24 CFR §903.23(b)) 
 

B.2  New Activities.  If the PHA intends to undertake any new activities related to these elements or discretionary policies in the current Fiscal Year, mark “yes” 
for those elements, and describe the activities to be undertaken in the space provided. If the PHA does not plan to undertake these activities, mark “no.”  

 
  HOPE VI.  1) A description of any housing (including project name, number (if known) and unit count) for which the PHA will apply for HOPE VI; 

and 2) A timetable for the submission of applications or proposals.  The application and approval process for Hope VI is a separate process. See guidance on 
HUD’s website at: https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/programs/ph/hope6 . (Notice PIH 2011-47)   

 
  Mixed Finance Modernization or Development.  1) A description of any housing (including name, project number (if known) and unit count) for 

which the PHA will apply for Mixed Finance Modernization or Development; and 2) A timetable for the submission of applications or proposals.  The 
application and approval process for Mixed Finance Modernization or Development is a separate process. See guidance on HUD’s website at:  
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/programs/ph/hope6/mfph#4 

 
  Demolition and/or Disposition.  With respect to public housing only, describe any public housing development(s), or portion of a public housing 

development projects,  owned by the PHA and subject to ACCs (including project number and unit numbers [or addresses]), and the number of affected units 
along with their sizes and accessibility features) for which the PHA will apply or is currently pending for demolition or disposition approval under section 18 
of the 1937 Act (42 U.S.C. 1437p); and (2) A timetable for the demolition or disposition.  This statement must be submitted to the extent that approved 
and/or pending demolition and/or disposition has changed as described in the PHA’s last Annual and/or 5-Year PHA Plan submission.  The application and 
approval process for demolition and/or disposition is a separate process.  Approval of the PHA Plan does not constitute approval of these activities. See 
guidance on HUD’s website at:  http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/centers/sac/demo_dispo/index.cfm. (24 CFR §903.7(h))   
  

  Conversion of Public Housing under the Voluntary or Mandatory Conversion programs.  Describe any public housing building(s) (including 
project number and unit count) owned by the PHA that the PHA is required to convert or plans to voluntarily convert to tenant-based assistance; 2) An 
analysis of the projects or buildings required to be converted; and 3) A statement of the amount of assistance received to be used for rental assistance or 
other housing assistance in connection with such conversion.  See guidance on HUD’s website at: 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/centers/sac/conversion.cfm. (24 CFR §903.7(j))   
 

  Conversion of Public Housing under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program.  Describe any public housing building(s) (including 
project number and unit count) owned by the PHA that the PHA plans to voluntarily convert to Project-Based Assistance or Project-Based Vouchers under 
RAD.  See additional guidance on HUD’s website at: Notice PIH 2012-32 REV-3, successor RAD Implementation Notices, and other RAD notices.    

 
  Project-Based Vouchers.  Describe any plans to use HCVs for new project-based vouchers. (24 CFR §983.57(b)(1))  If using project-based vouchers,   

      provide the projected number of project-based units and general locations and describe how project-basing would be consistent with the PHA Plan. 
 

  Units with Approved Vacancies for Modernization. The PHA must include a statement related to units with approved vacancies that are undergoing 
modernization in accordance with 24 CFR §990.145(a)(1).    
 

  Other Capital Grant Programs (i.e., Capital Fund Community Facilities Grants or Emergency Safety and Security Grants). 
 

B.3  Progress Report.  For all Annual Plans following submission of the first Annual Plan, a PHA must include a brief statement of the PHA’s progress in 
meeting the mission and goals described in the 5-Year PHA Plan. (24 CFR §903.7(r)(1))   

 
B.4    Capital Improvements.  PHAs that receive funding from the Capital Fund Program (CFP) must complete this section. (24 CFR §903.7 (g)). To     comply 

with this requirement, the PHA must reference the most recent HUD approved Capital Fund 5 Year Action Plan in EPIC and the date that it was approved. 
PHAs can reference the form by including the following language in the Capital Improvement section of the appropriate Annual or Streamlined PHA Plan   
Template: “See Capital Fund 5 Year Action Plan in EPIC approved by HUD on XX/XX/XXXX.”  

 
B.5 Most Recent Fiscal Year Audit.  If the results of the most recent fiscal year audit for the PHA included any findings, mark “yes” and describe those 

findings in the space provided.  (24 CFR §903.7(p))    
 
 
C. Other Document and/or Certification Requirements   

 
  C.1   Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments. If the RAB had comments on the annual plan, mark “yes,” submit the comments as an attachment to the Plan 

and describe the analysis of the comments and the PHA’s decision made on these recommendations. (24 CFR §903.13(c), 24 CFR §903.19)   
 
   C.2 Certification by State of Local Officials.  Form HUD-50077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated 

Plan, must be submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan. (24 CFR §903.15).  Note:  A PHA may request to change its fiscal year to 
better coordinate its planning with planning done under the Consolidated Plan process by State or local officials as applicable. 

 
   C.3 Civil Rights Certification/ Certification Listing Policies and Programs that the PHA has Revised since Submission of its Last Annual Plan.  Provide a 

certification that the following plan elements have been revised, provided to the RAB for comment before implementation, approved by the PHA board, and 
made available for review and inspection by the public. This requirement is satisfied by completing and submitting form HUD-50077 ST-HCV-HP, PHA 
Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations Including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed. Form 
HUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP, PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations Including PHA Plan 
Elements that Have Changed must be submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan.  This includes all certifications relating to Civil 
Rights and related regulations.  A PHA will be considered in compliance with the certification requirement to affirmatively further fair housing if the PHA 
fulfills the requirements of §§ 903.7(o)(1) and 903.15(d) and: (i) examines its programs or proposed programs; (ii) identifies any fair housing issues and 
contributing factors within those programs, in accordance with 24 CFR 5.154; or 24 CFR 5.160(a)(3) as applicable (iii) specifies actions and strategies 
designed to address contributing factors, related fair housing issues, and goals in the applicable Assessment of Fair Housing consistent with 24 CFR 5.154 in 
a reasonable manner in view of the resources available; (iv) works with jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction's initiatives to affirmatively further 

http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=31b6a8e6f1110b36cc115eb6e4d5e3b4&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.1.5.2
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.9
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/programs/ph/hope6
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/notices/pih/07pihnotices.cfm
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/programs/ph/hope6/mfph#4
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/centers/sac/demo_dispo/index.cfm
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/centers/sac/conversion.cfm
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/administration/hudclips/notices/pih/12pihnotices
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=b44bf19bef93dd31287608d2c687e271&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.24&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.24.2.41.7
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp=1&SID=861f819542172e8e9912b8c1348ee120&ty=HTML&h=L&n=24y4.0.3.1.23&r=PART
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=663ef5e048922c731853f513acbdfa81&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=0885bb33f96a064e6519e07d66d87fd6&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.5
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=13734845220744370804c20da2294a03&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.9
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=f41eb312b1425d2a95a2478fde61e11f&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.12
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=929855241bbc0873ac4be47579a4d2bf&rgn=div5&view=text&node=24:4.0.3.1.3&idno=24#24:4.0.3.1.3.2.5.10


 

Page 8 of 8                       form HUD-50075-HP (03/31/2024) 
 

  

fair housing that require the PHA's involvement; (v) operates programs in a manner consistent with any applicable consolidated plan under 24 CFR part 91, 
and with any order or agreement, to comply with the authorities specified in paragraph (o)(1) of this section; (vi) complies with any contribution or 
consultation requirement with respect to any applicable AFH, in accordance with 24 CFR 5.150 through 5.180; (vii) maintains records reflecting these 
analyses, actions, and the results of these actions; and (viii) takes steps acceptable to HUD to remedy known fair housing or civil rights violations. 
impediments to fair housing choice within those programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works 
with the local jurisdiction to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing; and assures that the annual plan is consistent 
with any applicable Consolidated Plan for its jurisdiction. (24 CFR §903.7(o)).   

 
    C.4 Challenged Elements. If any element of the Annual PHA Plan or 5-Year PHA Plan is challenged, a PHA must include such information as an attachment to   
  the Annual PHA Plan or 5-Year PHA Plan with a description of any challenges to Plan elements, the source of the challenge, and the PHA’s response to the 

public. 
 
D. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. 
 

D.1   Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing.  
The PHA will use the answer blocks in item D.1 to provide a statement of its strategies and actions to implement each fair housing goal outlined in its accepted 
Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) consistent with 24 CFR § 5.154(d)(5) that states, in relevant part: “To implement goals and priorities in an AFH, strategies and 
actions shall be included in program participants' … PHA Plans (including any plans incorporated therein) …. Strategies and actions must affirmatively further fair 
housing ….”  Use the chart provided to specify each fair housing goal from the PHA’s AFH for which the PHA is the responsible program participant – whether the 
AFH was prepared solely by the PHA, jointly with one or more other PHAs, or in collaboration with a state or local jurisdiction – and specify the fair housing 
strategies and actions to be implemented by the PHA during the period covered by this PHA Plan. If there are more than three fair housing goals, add answer blocks 
as necessary.  
 
Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA will not have to complete section D., nevertheless , the PHA will address its obligation to 
affirmatively further fair housing by fulfilling the requirements at 24 CFR 903.7(o)(3) enacted prior to August 17, 2015, which means that it examines its own 
programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in 
view of the resources available; works with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that require the 
PHA’s involvement; and maintain records reflecting these analyses and actions. Furthermore, under Section 5A(d)(15) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as 
amended, a PHA must submit a civil rights certification with its Annual PHA Plan, which is described at 24 CFR 903.7(o)(1) except for qualified PHAs who submit 
the Form HUD-50077-CR as a standalone document.  
 
 

This information collection is authorized by Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act, which added a new section 5A to the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as 
amended, which introduced the 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan.  The 5-Year and Annual PHA Plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic PHA policies, 
rules, and requirements concerning the PHA’s operations, programs, and services, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the public of the PHA’s 
mission, goals and objectives for serving the needs of low- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income families.     
 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 7.02 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  HUD may not collect this information, and respondents are 
not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number. 
 
Privacy Act Notice.  The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, 
U.S. Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations.  Responses to the collection of information are required to 
obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit.  The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.

 



 

Attachment B.1 Revision of PHA Plan Elements 
Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs 
The assessment of the impediments to fair housing and fair housing plan strategies was developed with input 
from the City of Eugene and the City of Springfield Consolidated plan 2020. 
   
As a first step in this effort Homes for Good assessed impediments and barriers to fair housing as part of its 
Annual PHA Plan. This was developed with input during the City of Eugene and the City of Springfield 
Consolidated planning process and consultation with many community partners. Its effectiveness is reviewed 
and measured annually so that strategies can be adjusted, as necessary. Through this work it was found that 
the two primary issues related to housing need are 1) The lack of affordable units and 2) Significant barriers to 
providing equal access to units that are available.  
 
Families with incomes below 30 percent of area median income (extremely low-income) 
Unless otherwise noted, all information below is from the 2020 Eugene-Springfield Consolidated Plan. In Eugene-
Springfield 44% of households in the plan area have extremely low, very low or low-moderate incomes. HUD 
provided numbers in the Consolidated plan indicated that 14.8% of total households were identified as extremely 
low income (less than 30% AMI) and 12.3% as low income (between 30 and 50% AMI). More households with 
children under age 6 (55%) and households with people over age 75 (54%) have low incomes.   
 
The 2015 Eugene-Springfield Consolidated Plan notes that housing costs in the Eugene-Springfield area have 
risen sharply over the past 25 years while incomes have risen slowly, forcing many households to pay more for 
housing than is affordable. Households paying more than 30% of household income are considered to have a 
‘housing cost burden’. Most of the renters in Eugene (54%) and Springfield (51%) are considered housing cost 
burdened, while approximately a third of homeowners are also cost burdened (Eugene – 32%, Springfield – 
33%). The elderly makes up 15% of the very low income with a housing cost burden. 
 
Low and very low-income people need increased access to quality affordable rental housing. There is a total of 
31,055 low-income renter households in Eugene, and 7,335 in Springfield.   
 
A significant majority of low-income renters experience a housing cost burden, overcrowding, and/or 
substandard housing conditions (Eugene – 78%, Springfield – 76%). 
A significant majority of low-income renters spend more than 30% of their income on housing costs (Eugene – 
76%, Springfield – 74%). 
A large percentage of low-income renters spend more than 50% of their income on housing costs (Eugene – 
51%, Springfield – 34%). 
 
Elderly families and families with disabilities  
Elderly make up 13.9% (Renter) and 33.7% (Owner) of the total households with a severe housing cost burden 
by income. A severe housing cost burden indicates that over 50% of the income is spent on housing.  
 
The Consolidated Plan also indicates that about 14% of population in the Cities of Eugene and Springfield lives 
with one or more disabilities (29,125 people). Persons with disabilities face a number of barriers related to 
mobility, transportation, housing, employment, and access to services. In addition, persons with disabilities 
report many instances of discrimination. 
 



 

Households of various races and ethnic groups residing in the jurisdiction  
In most income categories, there are racial or ethnic groups which are experiencing a disproportionately greater 
need than the needs of the income category as a whole. For people with very low incomes (30-50% MFI), 
American Indian/Alaskan Native and Black/African Americans experience a disproportionately greater need than 
the general population. For people with low incomes (50-80% MFI), Black/African Americans experience a 
disproportionate level of need. For people with moderate income (80%-100 MFI), Asian, Latino, and 
Black/African American experience a disproportionately greater need than the income category as a whole.  In 
Eugene and Springfield, there are approximately 13% of the people who identified as a minority race in the 
2010 census. There are five census tracts where a higher percentage (17%- 23%) of people identified as a 
minority race. 
 
Hispanic households experience a disproportionately greater incidence of housing cost burden compared to the 
entire population, with 53% of the Hispanic households paying more than 30% of their income for housing costs. 
Asian households experience a disproportionately greater incidence of severe housing cost burdens compared 
to the entire population; 35% of Asian households spend more than 50% of their income on housing costs. 
 
Black/African American households experience a disproportionately greater need with severe housing problems 
in both very low-income (30-50% AMI) and moderate income (80-100% AMI) categories. Severe housing 
problems exist when a household experiences one or more of the following housing problems: lacks complete 
kitchen facilities, lacks complete plumbing facilities, has over 1.5 people per room, and a housing cost burden 
over 50%. Both Asian and Hispanic low-income (50-80% AMI) households experience a disproportionate number 
of severe housing problems. 
 
Affordability and supply 
The lack of availability rental and owner-occupied units for low-income residents, as indicated by the significant 
waiting lists for public housing, and the difficulty experienced by Section 8 voucher-holders in trying to find 
affordable available housing. Additionally, vacancy rates remain low, at 2% for Eugene owner-occupied and 
rental housing, and 2% in Springfield for owner-occupied housing and 3% for renter units.  Data from Oregon 
Housing and Community Services further supports this need indicating there is a deficit of over 2,700 affordable 
housing units in Lane County in 2016. 
 
Our strategies to increase the availability of affordable, accessible housing include aggressively pursuing 
additions to the housing supply through the use of government subsidies and incentives as well as public/private 
partnerships. 
 
Homes for Good is addressing this need in a variety of ways which include: 
• New Construction 
• Administrative 
• Preservation 
• Development Pipeline 
  
  



 

New Construction 
5 New Construction projects are recently completed or currently underway totaling 230 units.  

 The Commons on MLK 
($13 million total budget) 
 

This 51-unit project completed construction in January of 2021 is a powerful 
partnership with Lane County to implement the priorities/goals of the Poverty 
and Homelessness Board. 
  
The project has received the following capital commitments - $3mm from OHCS 
for a non-competitive housing first project, $500k from Trillium, $750k from the 
Federal Home Loan Bank, $540k from the Oregon Health Authority, $500k from 
Pacific Source, $1.1mm from the City of Eugene and we have two outstanding 
requests of $500k each from Kaiser and Peace Health. 
  
The project has received the following supportive services commitments - $180k 
from Pacific Source and $250k each from Kaiser and Pacific Source.  
 
51 Project Based Section 8 vouchers have been awarded to the project.   
 
 

 Sarang  
(1 of 2 projects part of 
$32mm Rental Assistance 
Demonstration 
Preservation RAD 
replacement Project.)  
 

This 49-unit project is one of two different sites in one financial transaction.  for 
Good received approval from HUD through the RAD program to sell 100 single 
family homes and duplexes that receive a Public Housing rental/operating subsidy 
and converting these subsidies to a Section 8 subsidy that will be place into 100 
newly constructed units.  This project was completed in June of 2021 and 
provides 49 of the units in Eugene. 

 Hayden Bridge Landing  
(2nd RAD replacement 
project) 
 

This 70-unit project is the second site in the one financial transaction and was 
completed in June of 2021.  This project provides the remaining 53 replacement 
of the units in Springfield with attached rental subsidy and an additional 17 units 
that will provide much needed one-bedroom units. 

 The Keystone This 15-unit Permanent Supportive Housing development in Eugene serves 
homeless families and includes 15 PBVs. It was completed in fall of 2021. 

 The Nel This 45-unit Permanent Supportive Housing development in Eugene will serve 
homeless individuals and includes 45 PBVs. It began construction in May 2021 
and will be complete in July of 2022. 

  
  



 

Administrative 
 100 West 13th Ave $10 mm acquisition and renovation of new administrative headquarters in Eugene 

completed in May 2020. 
 
Preservation 

 Future RAD Conversions 
 

 Homes for Good is looking at future phases of converting the remaining public 
housing through the RAD process. 

  
 Preservation of Federal Subsidies in Lane County – Homes for Good is looking 

at several developments that may need preservation work to preserve ongoing 
federal subsidies. 

 
Development Pipeline 

 Lazy Days Homes for Good purchased a mobile home park up the McKenzie River that was 
destroyed in the Holiday Farm fire. The park will be used for temporary and 
permanent housing.  

 Turnkey Lane County acquired a 50-unit hotel that it is using to house people displaced 
by wildfires. Once that use is complete the property will be transferred to 
Homes for Good and converted to Permanent Supportive Housing. 

 Glenwood Homes for acquired property in Glenwood that will be used for a future 
development of 100 to 150 units. 

 Florence Homes for Good acquired a 6-acre parcel that will be used for the future 
development of 100 to 150 units 

 Rural Lane County Homes for Good is working with Lane County and the cities of Cottage Grove 
and Florence to acquire land for rural affordable housing projects 

 Permanent Supportive 
Housing 

Homes for Good is working with Lane County and has identified several sites in 
the Metro area that will be used for future PSH projects. 

 
 
  



 

Impediments to Fair Housing 
While some of the identified impediments are not directly related to the federal Fair Housing Act, as a Public 
Housing Authority that sponsors the Fair Housing Council of Oregon, Homes for Good continues to believe that 
the lack of availability of affordable, accessible housing is a problem in our community and therefore, had 
maintained its efforts to promote affordable, accessible housing in addition to our efforts to overcome the more 
specific impediments which are directly related to the federal Fair Housing Act. Three major impediments to 
providing equal housing to populations were identified in development of the annual plan as follows:  
 

1. Limited Awareness of Fair Housing Policies in the Broader Community;  
2. Cultural differences and language barriers which inhibit access to fair housing, and;   
3. People with disabilities who have special housing needs have limited choices and are often constrained 

by their lower incomes.  
 
Impediment: Limited awareness of fair housing policies in the broader community. Strategies to 
address this impediment include: 
Participating in community engagement and is very involved in area- wide Fair Housing planning and efforts.  
 
Joining various relevant boards, including the Rental Owners Association (ROA), Human Rights Commission, 
Housing Policy Board, United Way Equity Coalition and Lane County Poverty and Homeless Board.  
 
Executive Director Jacob Fox is on the Poverty and Homelessness Board and chairs their facilities committee; in 
that position Jacob strives to further the goals of Fair Housing. 
 
Rent Assistance Division Director, Beth Ochs continues to serve on the board of the Lane County Rental Owner’s 
Association (ROA). This board meets monthly. As of June 2020, the ROA has 1228 members representing 16,764 
rental properties in Lane County. Homes for Good’s Landlord Liaison, Travis Baker also routinely participates in 
the ROA. Travis attends the monthly general membership meeting, provides informational seminars on Homes 
for Good’s housing programs and submits monthly articles to the ROA newsletter. 
 
Real Estate Development Director, Steve Ochs is on the Housing Policy Board which sets local policy regarding 
housing and works to further Fair Housing Goals. 
 
Using every opportunity to make regular presentations to Springfield/Eugene groups including Eugene City Club, 
the University of Oregon, Chambers of Commerce and the Fair Housing Conference.  
 
Homes for Good continues to support Blacks in Government and NAACP at their annual celebrations and 
educational events. 
 
Homes for Good is planning a mandated 4-hour all-staff training in Fair Housing laws. 
 
Updated Fair Housing information was added during a recent revision of the Section 8 program briefing packets.  
 
Homes for Good staff participate annually in the University of Oregon Internship Fair.  This is an opportunity to 
inform students about Homes for Good’s work in the community to promote Fair Housing.  
  
Homes for Good has produced updated maps showing concentrations of poverty in Lane County. 
Homes for Good is actively in engaged in placing the briefing, which include maps noting concentrations of 
poverty within Lane County, on its website. Placement on the website will create ease of access to those we 
serve and will allow Homes for Good to continue to provide housing even with social distance measures in place, 
given COVID-19.  
 
Homes for Good has produced updated maps showing concentrations of poverty in Lane County. 
 



 

Homes for Good has a presence on the Human Rights Commission and the United Way Equity Coalition. 
 
Impediment: Cultural differences and language barriers which inhibit access to fair housing. 
Strategies to address this impediment include: 
 
We are working on our Diversity, Equity and Inclusion initiative which includes staff education and an equity 
centered service and programing. We will be creating an Equity Strategy Team to help guide our work. 
 
Conduct targeted recruitments for bilingual employees.  At the present time there are 11 bilingual employees 
(English/Spanish).  Homes for Good also has 4 staff members proficient in German, Dutch, Czech, Polish, Hindi 
and French. 
 
Homes for Good has implemented a Language Access Plan, which will provide access to translation services as 
needed for participants as well as provide our most used forms in various languages.  
 
Impediment: People with disabilities who have special housing needs have limited choices and are 
often constrained by their lower incomes. Strategies to address this impediment include: 
 
Accessibility survey of all Homes for Good owned units being conducted. 
 
Quarterly meetings at VA to expedite referrals for homeless vets. Waiver requests to HUD to allow CARES Act 
funds to be utilized for deposits and fees. 
 
Administer an Emergency Housing Assistance (EHA) grant which assists Mainstream voucher holders with 
miscellaneous costs related to lease-up. Mainstream Vouchers serve non-elderly disabled persons. 
 
Quarterly meetings with Shelter Plus Care service providers to expedite referrals for S+C Program. 
 
Provide sufficient ADA units in public housing and LIHTC housing. 
 
Working closely with residents to ensure reasonable accommodations are approved when appropriate.  
 
Homes for Good, in partnership with Lane County, is working to expand the Housing First movement for people 
with disabilities or other barriers to housing. 
 
In addition to these specific strategies Homes for Good has made a strong commitment to promoting Fair 
Housing rights and Fair Housing choice by providing information regarding Fair Housing and Fair Housing 
choice to applicants, residents and staff. The following is a list of actions that Homes for Good has taken: 
 
The Fair Housing logo “Equal Housing Opportunity” is prominently displayed on location signs at Homes for 
Good’s two administrative offices and at its various housing complexes 
 
The Fair housing logo is prominently displayed on signs/banners at various Homes for Good locations, 
announcing the availability of low-income rental units 
 
The Fair Housing logo is on Homes for Good letterhead and business cards 
 
The Agency’s Policy of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability/Handicap Status is prominently displayed in 
the lobbies of the two administrative offices and in public areas at its various housing complexes 
 
The Agency’s Policy of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability/Handicap Status is prominently displayed on 
the website:  www.HomesforGood.org  
 



 

HUD Form 928.1 (“We Do Business in Accordance with the Federal Fair Housing Law” poster) is prominently 
displayed in English and Spanish in Homes for Good’s administrative office and in public areas at the various 
housing complexes 
 
HUD Form 1686-FHEO (*Fair Housing – It’s Your Right* Pamphlet) is available in English and Spanish in the two 
administrative offices 
 
*Filing a Housing ‘Discrimination Complaint* - a pamphlet created by Consumer Action with funding from the 
U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is available in English and Spanish at Homes for 
Good’s two administrative offices 
 
Applicants or residents with questions about Fair Housing issues are referred, or directed via website link, to the 
Fair Housing Council of Oregon, Legal Aid Services of Oregon (LSAO) or Lane County Law & Advocacy Center 
(LCLAC), the Oregon Advocacy  Center (OAC), the Lane Independent Living Alliance (LILA), the Oregon Bureau 
of Labor and Industries (BOLI), and/or to the US Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUDF) / Office 
of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity (FHEO) 
 
Homes for Good has a long-standing Policy on Reasonable Accommodation, which is recognized in the Pacific 
Northwest among public Housing Authorities and by the regional HUD office as being comprehensive, well-
written, and well-implemented. 
 
Homes for Good’s Policy on Reasonable Accommodation is prominently displayed in administrative office and in 
public areas of its various housing complexes.  It is available to any applicant or resident and is included in the 
Admin Plan and Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policies.  It is also posted on Homes for Good’s website 
at www.HomesforGood.org  
 
Applicants for, and recipients of, housing assistance from Homes for Good are advised of their right to request 
reasonable accommodation for their disability.  Information regarding reasonable accommodations is provided 
on the pre-application for assistance, in initial determination of ineligibility, in the public housing and assisted 
housing lease agreements, in notices of eviction, in periodic resident newsletters, and discussed during the 
intake process during any informal settlement discussions and during other discussions with applicants and/or 
residents when inquiries are made about accommodating disabilities. 
 
Under the terms of a voluntary compliance agreement between the us department of HUD/FHEO and Homes 
for Good’s pre-application for housing assistance requests information from applicants, which is not used in 
determining their eligibility for housing regarding their ethnicity, race, and disability status.  This information is 
recorded, retained, and available to HUD upon request 
 
 Homes for Good has completed outreach presentations to agencies representing youth, seniors/elderly, persons 
with physical and/or mental disabilities, and minorities, to help assure that a broad base of the community has 
access to information about the availability of housing.  This outreach effort continues on an ongoing basis and 
representatives from a number of those social service/advocacy agencies serve on Homes for Good’s family self-
sufficiency advisory board. 
 
Homes for Good maintains reception staff, as well as other staff in all departments that have ongoing contact 
with residents, who are bilingual/bicultural in Spanish and English. 
 
Homes for Good has also worked to increase the ability of low-income community members to access housing 
by developing an innovative program in cooperation with community lending-works, the lending arm of DevNW 
(neighborhood economic development corporation), to assist applicants to its agency-owned housing programs, 
in obtaining loans to cover the cost of their security deposits, as they lease up with Homes for Good.  Homes 
for Good indemnifies the loans, guaranteeing payment to DevNW, should the applicant default. 
  



 

Financial Resources 

  

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY  BUDGET - SUMMARY OF RESOUCES - FY 2021

BEGINNING FEDERAL
PROGRAM RESERVE REVENUE RENT OTHER TOTAL

Community Services
Development 12,915,200          -                     -                     7,422,600            20,337,800            
Bus Barn -                    -                     62,500                -                     62,500                  
Weatherization -                    1,588,500            -                     -                     1,588,500              
Shelter Plus Care -                    817,000               -                     -                     817,000                 
Herran Center 506,700              -                     269,000               -                     775,700                 
Signpost House 158,100              -                     90,500                -                     248,600                 
Family Self Sufficiency -                    324,900               -                     -                     324,900                 
VA Per Diem -                    150,000               -                     -                     150,000                 
MS - Barrier Busters -                    -                     -                     15,600                15,600                  
The Way Home -                    -                     -                     39,000                39,000                  
Family Shelter House 61,000                -                     13,500                -                     74,500                  
ROSS -                    80,000                -                     -                     80,000                  
Emergency Housing Assistance -                    18,400                -                     -                     18,400                  
Homes for Good Foundation 27,900                -                     -                     3,000                  30,900                  

13,668,900       2,978,800          435,500              7,480,200          24,563,400          

Housing
Public Housing 845,700              1,588,400            2,019,400            39,900                4,493,400              
Firwood 50,100                -                     627,800               -                     677,900                 
Norseman 428,200              -                     288,600               -                     716,800                 
Jacob's Lane 261,500              -                     355,500               -                     617,000                 
Sheldon Village Apartments 82,900                -                     620,700               -                     703,600                 
Village Oaks 14,300                100,000               363,600               -                     477,900                 
Fourteen Pines 403,700              284,000               200,000               -                     887,700                 
Laurel Gardens 139,900              -                     214,000               -                     353,900                 
Walnut Park 183,800              -                     180,000               -                     363,800                 
The Orchards -                    -                     201,900               -                     201,900                 
Abbie Lane 235,600              -                     360,300               -                     595,900                 
Camas Place 5,275                 -                     259,500               -                     264,775                 
Capital Fund -                    1,422,000            -                     -                     1,422,000              

2,650,975          3,394,400          5,691,300          39,900                 11,776,575          

Rental Assistance 2,021,000          24,540,800        -                        -                        26,561,800          

Central Office Cost Center 1,816,025          -                        685,000              3,496,400          5,997,425             

TOTALS 20,156,900$     30,914,000$     6,811,800$        11,016,500$     68,899,200$        

*BEGINNING RESERVE represents managements estimate of net resources as of the beginning of the fiscal year.



 

Significant Amendment or Modification 
 
Definitions of Substantial Deviation to the PHA 5 Year Plan and Significant Amendment to the 5 
Year and Annual Plan 
 

In accordance with 24 CRF 903.7(r)(2) which requires public housing authorities to identify the basic criteria the 
agency will use to determine a substantial deviation from its 5 Year Plan and significant amendments or 
modification to the 5 Year Plan and Annual Plan, the following definitions are offered: 

Definition of Substantial Deviation from the 5 Year Plan:  

• A substantial change in a goal(s) identified in the 5 Year Plan.  

Definition of Significant Amendment or Modification to the Annual and 5 Year Plan: 

• Changes of a sufficient nature to the rent, admissions policies, or the organization of the waiting list not 
required by federal regulatory requirements as to a change in the Section 8 Administration Plan or the 
Public Housing Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. This includes elimination or major changes 
in any activities proposed, or policies provided in the agency plan that would momentously affect services 
or programs provided residents. This definition does not include budget revisions, changes in 
organizational structure, changes resulting from HUD-imposed regulations, or minor policy changes.  

• Significant dollar or work item changes to the Capital Fund grant. Significant dollar change to be defined 
as more than 20% of the total annual grant. Moving a work item from one year to another will not be 
considered a significant change even if that change produces a dollar change over 20%. 

• Changes of a sufficient nature with regard to demolition or disposition, designation, homeownership 
programs, or conversion activities. 
 

As a result of our participation in the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD), Homes for Good is further 
defining Substantial Deviation and Significant Amendment or Modification to exclude the following RAD-
specific items: 

• The decision to convert to either Project Based Rental Assistance or Project Based Voucher Assistance.  
• Changes to the Capital Fund Budget produced as a result of each approved RAD Conversion, regardless 

of whether the proposed conversion will include use of additional Capital Funds.  
• Changes to the construction and rehabilitation plan for each approved RAD conversion.  
• Changes to the financing structure for each approved RAD conversion. 

 



 
Key Modifications to Homes for Good Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy Fiscal Year 2023 

Effective Date 10-01-2022 to 9-30-2023  



 
 
Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 

Change? 
Impact 

2-I.A. Executive Orders 11063 Executive Orders 11063 and 13988 
 

Yes None 

2-I.B. The PHA will not discriminate on the 
basis of marital status, gender 
identity, or sexual orientation [FR 
Notice 02/03/12]. 
 

The PHA will not discriminate on the basis of marital status, gender 
identity, or sexual orientation [FR Notice 02/03/12]; Executive Order 
13988]. 
 

Yes None 

2-III.B. The PHA will utilize a language line 
for telephone interpreter services. 

The PHA will utilize a language line for telephone interpreter services. 
 
When exercising the option to conduct remote hearings, 
however, the PHA will coordinate with a remote interpretation 
service which, when available, uses video conferencing 
technology rather than voice-only interpretation. 
 

No Using video 
conferencing 
when possible will 
provide better 
Limited English 
Proficiency 
customer service. 

3-II.E.  3-II.E. EIV SYSTEM SEARCHES [Notice PIH 2018-18; EIV FAQs; 
EIV System Training 9/30/20] 
Existing Tenant Search 
Prior to admission to the program, the PHA must search for all household 
members using the EIV Existing Tenant Search module. The PHA must 
review the reports for any SSA matches involving another PHA or a 
multifamily entity and follow up on any issues identified. The PHA must 
provide the family with a copy of the Existing Tenant Search results if 
requested. At no time may any family member receive duplicative 
assistance. 
If the tenant is a new admission to the PHA, and a match is identified at a 
multifamily property, the PHA must report the program admission date to 
the multifamily property and document the notification in the tenant file. 
The family must provide documentation of move-out from the assisted 
unit, as applicable. 
 
PHA Policy 
The PHA will contact the PHA or owner identified in the report to confirm 
that the family has moved out of the unit and obtain documentation of 
current tenancy status, including a form HUD-50058 or 50059, as 
applicable, showing an end of participation. The PHA will only approve 
assistance contingent upon the move-out from the currently occupied 
assisted unit. 
 
Debts Owed to PHAs and Terminations  
All adult household members must sign the form HUD-52675, Debts Owed 
to Public Housing and Terminations. Prior to admission to the program, 

Yes Compliance 



 
 

the PHA must search for each adult family member in the Debts Owed to 
PHAs and Terminations module. 
If a current or former tenant disputes the information in the module, the 
tenant should contact the PHA directly in writing to dispute the information 
and provide any documentation that supports the dispute. If the PHA 
determines that the disputed information is incorrect, the PHA will update 
or delete the record from EIV. Former tenants may dispute debt and 
termination information for a period of up to three years from the end of 
participation date in the program. 
 
PHA Policy 
The PHA will require each adult household member to sign the form HUD-
52675 once at the eligibility determination. Any new members added to 
the household after admission will be required to sign the form HUD-52675 
prior to being added to the household. 
 
The PHA will search the Debts Owed to PHAs and Terminations module as 
part of the eligibility determination for new households and as part of the 
screening process for any household members added after the household 
is admitted to the program. If any information on debts or terminations is 
returned by the search, the PHA will determine if this information warrants 
a denial in accordance with the policies in Part III of this chapter. 
 

3-III.C. Has a pattern of unsuitable past 
performance in meeting financial 
obligations, including rent within the 
past three years 
 
Has a pattern of disturbance of 
neighbors, destruction of property, 
or living or housekeeping habits at 
prior residences within the past three 
years which may adversely affect the 
health, safety, or welfare of other 
tenants 
 
… 
 
In the case of money owing to 
another PHA, or the owner of a rental 
or assisted property, the applicant 
will be notified by the PHA of the 
amount owed. The applicant will be 
given 14 days to provide the PHA 

Deleted 
 
… 
 
In the case of money owing to this or another PHA, the applicant will be 
notified by the PHA of the amount owed. The applicant will be given 14 
calendar days to provide the PHA with proof of payment or documentation 
that a repayment agreement has been reached and that the applicant is 
considered to be in good standing/up to date on payments. 
 

No Reducing 
screening criteria 
removes housing 
barriers 
commonly 
experienced by 
low-income 
renters. 
 
In addition, if 
money is owed to 
Homes for Good 
or another 
Housing Agency, 
applicants will not 
be required to 
have pay off all 
debts before 
being housed 
again. Applicants 
will be required to 



 
 

with proof of payment or 
documentation that a repayment 
agreement has been reached and 
that the applicant is considered to be 
in good standing/up to date on 
payments. 
 
In the case of money owing to the 
PHA, the applicant will be notified by 
the PHA of the total amount owed. 
The applicant will be given 14 days 
to provide the PHA with proof of 
payment in full. 

acknowledge the 
debt through a 
repayment 
agreement and 
be current on 
payments. 

3-III.D. The PHA will perform criminal 
background checks through the 
Oregon State Police Law 
Enforcement Data System (LEDS) 
database and Oregon court records 
(OJIN) or a commercial screening 
company for all adult household 
members. 
 
If the adult household member has 
resided in Oregon for the last 3 years 
and there is not indication of out-of-
state criminal activity, the PHA will 
use the Oregon State Police Law 
Enforcement Data System (LEDS) 
database and Oregon court records 
(OJIN) to conduct the criminal 
background check. 

The PHA will perform criminal background checks through a commercial 
screening company for all household members. 

No Homes for Good 
no longer has 
access to LEDS 
and OJIN. We 
currently use a 
commercial 
screening 
company. 

3-III.D. The PHA will use the Dru Sjodin 
National Sex Offender database to 
screen applicants for admission. 

The PHA will perform criminal background checks through a commercial 
screening company for all household members. 

No Homes for Good 
currently uses a 
commercial 
screening 
company for all 
background 
checks. 

3-III.D. Utility company references covering 
the monthly amount of utilities, late 
payment, disconnection, return of a 
utility deposit and whether the 
applicant can get utilities turned on 
in his/her name. 

Utility company references covering the monthly amount of utilities, late 
payment, disconnection, return of a utility deposit and whether the 
applicant can get utilities turned on in their name. 

No Simplified 
language to make 
it easier to read. 



 
 
3-III.D. If an applicant has no rental payment 

history the PHA may check court 
records of eviction actions and other 
financial judgments, and credit 
reports. 
If previous landlords or the utility 
company do not respond to requests 
from the PHA, the applicant may 
provide other documentation that 
demonstrates their ability to meet 
financial obligations (e.g. rent 
receipts, cancelled checks, etc.) 

 No Reducing 
screening criteria 
removes housing 
barriers 
commonly 
experienced by 
low-income 
renters. 
 

3-III.D. Police and court records within the 
past three years will be used to check 
for any evidence of disturbance of 
neighbors or destruction of property 
that might have resulted in arrest or 
conviction. A record of arrest(s) will 
not be used as the basis for the 
denial or proof that the applicant 
engaged in disqualifying activity. 
 
Alternative references will be 
requested to complete a verification 
of the applicant’s ability to care for 
the unit and avoid disturbing 
neighbors if no other documentation 
is available. 

Police and court records within the past three years may be used to check 
for any evidence of disturbance of neighbors or destruction of property 
that might have resulted in arrest or conviction. A record of arrest(s) will 
not be used as the basis for the denial or proof that the applicant engaged 
in disqualifying activity. 

No Reducing 
screening criteria 
removes housing 
barriers 
commonly 
experienced by 
low-income 
renters. 
 

4-I.D. The PHA will send written notification 
of the preliminary eligibility 
determination within 14 calendar 
days of receiving a completed pre-
application. If applicable, the notice 
will also indicate the waiting list 
preference(s) for which the family 
appears to qualify. 
 
Applicants will be placed on the 
waiting list according to PHA 
preference(s) and a random 
selection method and ranking 
method assigned at the time the 
waiting list closes. 
Placement on the waiting list does 

Upon successful completion of an application the applicant will be provided 
a computer-generated receipt from the WaitListCheck software waiting list.  
It is the responsibility of the applicant to retain this receipt as proof of 
successful application submission. 
 
Placement on the waiting list does not indicate that the family is, in fact, 
eligible for admission. When the family is selected from the waiting list, 
the PHA will verify any preference(s) claimed and determine eligibility and 
suitability for admission to the program. 
 
Applicants will be placed on the waiting list using a random selection 
process .  Once each application has been randomly assigned a number, 
the applications will be placed on the waiting list in order of the assigned 
numbers and according to any preference(s) for which they qualify. 
 
All successful applicant submissions will enter into a random selection 

No Clarifies our 
waitlist process 



 
 

not indicate that the family is, in fact, 
eligible for admission.  
 
When the family is selected from the 
waiting list, the PHA will verify any 
preference(s) claimed and determine 
eligibility and suitability for admission 
to 
the program. 

process.  Those randomly selected will receive a letter assigning them their 
random selection number.  Those who are not selected thru the random 
selection process will receive a letter stating they were not selected. 

4-II.F. The family’s response must be in 
writing and may be delivered in 
person, by mail, by email, or by fax. 
Responses should be postmarked or 
received by the PHA not later than 30 
calendar days from the date of the 
PHA letter. 
 
If the family fails to respond within 
30 calendar days, the family will be 
removed from the waiting list without 
further notice. 

The family’s response must be in writing and may be delivered in person, 
by mail, by email, or by fax. Responses should be postmarked or received 
by the PHA not later than 30 business days from the date of the PHA 
letter. 
 
If the family fails to respond within 30 business days, the family will be 
removed from the waiting list without further notice. 

No Change from 
calendar days to 
business days to 
align with the 
Administrative 
Plan and provide 
additional time to 
participants.  

4-II.F.  If the PHA determines that the family is not eligible for admission (see 
Chapter 3) at any time while the family is on the waiting list the family will 
be removed from the waiting list. 
If a family is removed from the waiting list because the PHA has 
determined the family is not eligible for admission, a notice will be sent to 
the family’s address of record as well as to any alternate address provided 
on the initial application. The notice will state the reasons the family was 
removed from the waiting list and will inform the family how to request an 
informal hearing regarding the PHA’s decision (see Chapter 14) [24 CFR 
960.208(a)]. 

No Clarifies our 
waitlist process 

4-III.C.  The PHA will notify the family by first class mail when it is selected from 
the waiting list. The notice will inform the family of the following: 
How to obtain an application packet 
If a notification letter is returned to the PHA with no forwarding address, 
the family will be removed from the waiting list. A notice of denial (see 
Chapter 3) will be sent to the family’s address of record, as well as to any 
known alternate address. 
 

No Clarifies our 
waitlist process 

 Families selected from the waiting list 
are required to participate in an 
intake interview. All adult family 
members must attend the interview. 
All household members provide 

Families selected from the waiting list are required to submit an 
application.  Applications will be reviewed for completeness.  Applicants 
with incomplete applications will be contacted via phone, mail, or email to 
complete the application. 
Verification of information pertaining to adult members of the household 

No Removes required 
intake interview 
and changes 
calendar to 
business days to 



 
 

appropriate documentation of legal 
identity (Chapter 7 provides a 
discussion of proper documentation 
of legal identity). If the family does 
not provide the required 
documentation, the appointment 
may be rescheduled when the proper 
documents have been obtained. 
Pending disclosure and 
documentation of social security 
numbers, the PHA will allow the 
family to retain its place on the 
waiting list for 60 days. If not all 
household members have disclosed 
their SSNs at the next time a unit 
becomes available, the PHA will offer 
a unit to the next eligible applicant 
family on the waiting list. 
If the family is claiming a waiting list 
preference, the family must provide 
documentation to verify their 
eligibility for a preference (see 
Chapter 7). If the family is verified as 
eligible for the preference, the PHA 
will proceed with the interview. If the 
PHA determines the family is not 
eligible for the preference, the 
interview will not proceed and the 
family will be placed back on the 
waiting list according to the date and 
time of their application. 
 
The family must provide the 
information necessary to establish 
the family’s eligibility, including 
suitability, and to determine the 
appropriate amount of rent the 
family will pay. The family must also 
complete required forms, provide 
required signatures, and submit 
required documentation. If any 
materials are missing, the PHA will 
provide the family with a written list 
of items that must be submitted. 

will not begin until signed release forms are returned to the PHA. 
Pending disclosure and documentation of social security numbers, the PHA 
will allow the family to retain its place on the waiting list for 60 days. If 
not all household members have disclosed their SSNs (if applicable) at the 
next time a unit becomes available, the PHA will offer a unit to the next 
eligible applicant family on the waiting list. 
The family must provide the required documentation to the PHA, during 
regular business hours, within 14 business days of an otherwise complete 
application.  The PHA will send a notice of outstanding documentation if 
the family fails to provide the required documentation within 14 business 
days. 
 
Any required documents or information that the family is unable to provide 
must be provided within 14 business days of the family being notified of 
the missing documentation Chapter 7 provides details about longer 
submission deadlines for particular items, including documentation of 
Social Security numbers and eligible noncitizen status). If the family is 
unable to obtain the information or materials within the required time 
frame, the family may request an extension. If the required documents 
and information are not provided within the required time frame (plus any 
extensions), the family will be sent a notice of denial (see Chapter 3). 
 
An advocate, interpreter, or other assistant may assist the family with the 
application. 
 
Applications will be provided in English. For limited English proficient (LEP) 
applicants, the PHA will provide translation services in accordance with the 
PHA’s LEP plan. 
 

provide more 
time to 
participants and 
align with the 
Administrative 
Plan.  



 
 

 
Any required documents or 
information that the family is unable 
to provide at the interview must be 
provided within 14 calendar days of 
the interview (Chapter 7 provides 
details about longer submission 
deadlines for particular items, 
including documentation of Social 
Security numbers and eligible 
noncitizen status). If the family is 
unable to obtain the information or 
materials within the required time 
frame, the family may request an 
extension. If the required documents 
and information are not provided 
within the required time frame (plus 
any extensions), the family will be 
sent a notice of denial (see Chapter 
3). 
 
An advocate, interpreter, or other 
assistant may assist the family with 
the application and the interview 
process. 
Interviews will be conducted in 
English. For limited English proficient 
(LEP) applicants, the PHA will provide 
translation services in accordance 
with the PHA’s LEP plan. 
 
If the family is unable to attend a 
scheduled interview, the family 
should contact the PHA in advance of 
the interview to schedule a new 
appointment. In all circumstances, if 
a family does not attend a scheduled 
interview, the PHA will send another 
notification letter with a new 
interview appointment time. 
Applicants who fail to attend two 
scheduled interviews without PHA 
approval will have their applications 
made inactive based on the family’s 



 
 

failure to supply information needed 
to determine eligibility. The second 
appointment letter will state that 
failure to appear for the appointment 
without a request to reschedule will 
be interpreted to mean that the 
family is no longer interested and 
their application will be made 
inactive. Such failure to act on the 
part of the applicant prevents the 
PHA from making an eligibility 
determination, therefore the PHA will 
not offer an informal hearing. 

4-III.E. The PHA will notify a family in writing 
of their eligibility within 14 calendar 
days of the determination and will 
provide the approximate date of 
occupancy insofar as that date can 
be reasonably determined. 

The PHA will notify a family in writing of their eligibility within 14 business 
days of the determination and will provide the approximate date of 
occupancy insofar as that date can be reasonably determined. 

No Provides more 
time and aligns 
with the 
Administrative 
Plan 

4-III.E. If the PHA determines that the family 
is ineligible, the PHA will send written 
notification of the ineligibility 
determination within 14 calendar 
days of the determination. The notice 
will specify the reasons for 
ineligibility, and will inform the family 
of its right to request an informal 
hearing (see Chapter 14). 

If the PHA determines that the family is ineligible, the PHA will send written 
notification of the ineligibility determination within 14 business days of 
the determination. The notice will specify the reasons for ineligibility, and 
will inform the family of its right to request an informal hearing (see 
Chapter 14). 

 Provides more 
time and aligns 
with the 
Administrative 
Plan 
 

5-I.C. Requests from applicants to be 
placed on the waiting list for a unit 
size smaller than designated by the 
occupancy standards will be 
assessed on a case-by-case basis, if 
the family agrees that the unit will 
meet their daily living needs , and the 
family agrees not to request a 
transfer for a period of two years 
from the date of admission, unless 
they have a subsequent change in 
family size or composition. Requests 
need supervisor approval. 

Requests from applicants to be placed on the waiting list for a unit size 
smaller than designated by the occupancy standards will be assessed on a 
case-by-case basis, if the family agrees that the unit will meet their daily 
living needs , and the family agrees not to request a transfer for a period 
of one year from the date of admission, unless they have a subsequent 
change in family size or composition. Requests need supervisor approval. 

No Reducing the 
waiting period to 
one year to align 
with other 
transfer 
processes 

5-I.C. The PHA will notify the family of its 
decision within 14 calendar days of 
receiving the family’s request. 

The PHA will notify the family of its decision within 14 business days of 
receiving the family’s request. 

No Provides more 
time and aligns 
with the 



 
 

Administrative 
Plan 
 

5-II.C.  Applicants who fail to respond within 3 business days will not be removed 
from the wait list. 

No Clarifies our 
waitlist process 

5-II.D. The PHA will require documentation 
of good cause for unit refusals. 

The PHA may require documentation of good cause for unit refusals. No Provides flexibility 
to only request 
documentation if 
it is necessary 

5-II.D. When an applicant rejects the second 
unit offer without good cause, the 
PHA will remove the applicant’s name 
from the waiting list for all site-
based developments the 
bedroom-size wait list, and send 
notice to the family of such removal. 
The notice will inform the family of 
their right to request an informal 
hearing and the process for doing so 
(see Chapter 14). 

When an applicant rejects the unit offer without good cause, the PHA will 
remove the applicant’s name from the waiting list for the bedroom-size 
wait list, and send notice to the family of such removal. The notice will 
inform the family of their right to request an informal hearing and the 
process for doing so (see Chapter 14). 

No Clarifies that 
removal from a 
waitlist for 
rejection would 
only result in 
removal from the 
one waiting list 

6-I.D. Sporadic income is income that is not 
received periodically and cannot be 
reliably predicted. For example, the 
income of an individual who works 
occasionally as a handyman would 
be considered sporadic if future work 
could not be anticipated and no 
historic, stable pattern of income 
existed. 

Sporadic income is income that is not received periodically and cannot be 
reliably predicted. For example, the income of an individual who works 
occasionally as a landscaper would be considered sporadic if future work 
could not be anticipated and no historic, stable pattern of income existed. 

No Change to gender 
neutral language 

6-II.F. Child care expenses will be 
considered for the time required for 
the eligible activity plus reasonable 
transportation time. For child care 
that enables a family member to go 
to school, the time allowed may 
include not more than one study 
hour for each hour spent in class. 
 
To establish the reasonableness of 
child care costs, the PHA will use the 
schedule of child care costs from the 
local welfare agency. Families may 
present, and the PHA will consider, 
justification for costs that exceed 

To establish the reasonableness of childcare costs, the PHA will verify the 
eligible childcare expenses via third party verification. . Families may 
present, and the PHA will consider, justification for costs that exceed 
typical costs in the area. 

No Simplifies 
childcare expense 
calculations 



 
 

typical costs in the area. 
7-I.D. As verification of earned income, the 

PHA will require the family to provide 
payroll documents or paystubs for at 
least the most current month. 

As verification of earned income, the PHA will require the family to provide 
the two most current, consecutive pay stubs. At the PHA’s discretion, if 
additional paystubs are needed due to the family’s circumstances (e.g., 
sporadic income, fluctuating schedule, etc.), the PHA may request 
additional paystubs or a payroll record. 

No Clarification of 
income 
verification 
process 

7-II.F. For family members claiming 
disability who receive disability 
payments from the SSA, the PHA will 
attempt to obtain information about 
disability benefits through HUD’s 
Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) 
system. If documentation is not 
available through HUD’s EIV system, 
the PHA will utilize available UIV 
systems. If the documentation is not 
available through EIV or UIV, or if the 
PHA questions the accuracy of UIV, 
the PHA will request a current (dated 
within the last 60 days) SSA benefit 
verification letter from each family 
member claiming disability status. If 
a family member is unable to provide 
the document, the PHA will ask the 
family to obtain and provide a benefit 
verification letter to the PHA. 

For family members claiming disability who receive disability payments 
from the SSA, the PHA will attempt to obtain information about disability 
benefits through HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) system. If 
documentation is not available through HUD’s EIV system, the PHA will 
request a current (dated within the last 60 days) SSA benefit verification 
letter from each family member claiming disability status. If a family 
member is unable to provide the document, the PHA will ask the family to 
obtain a benefit verification letter either by calling SSA at 1-800-772-1213 
or by requesting one from www.ssa.gov. Once the family receives the 
benefit verification letter, it will be required to provide the letter to the 
PHA. 

No Provides 
additional 
information on 
how participants 
can access 
required 
documentation 

8-I.C. The head of household, spouse or 
cohead, and all other adult members 
of the household will be required to 
sign the public housing lease prior to 
admission. An appointment will be 
scheduled for the parties to execute 
the lease. The head of household will 
be provided a copy of the executed 
lease and the PHA will retain a copy 
in the resident’s file. 

The head of household, spouse or cohead, and all other adult members of 
the household will be required to sign the public housing lease prior to 
admission. An appointment may be scheduled for the parties to execute 
the lease. The head of household will be provided a copy of the executed 
lease and all addenda  and the PHA will retain a copy in the resident’s 
file. 

No Clarifies the 
leasing process 

8-I.F. If the family fails to pay their rent by 
the seventh day of the month, and 
the PHA has not agreed to accept 
payment at a later date, a 14 day 
Notice to Vacate (72 Hour Notice 
with 14 days to pay) will be issued to 
the resident for failure to pay rent, 
demanding payment in full or the 

If the family fails to pay their rent by the seventh day of the month, and 
the PHA has not agreed to accept payment at a later date, a 30-Day 
Notice of Termination for Nonpayment of Rent will be issued to the 
resident for failure to pay rent, demanding payment in full or the surrender 
of the premises. 
 

Yes HUD regulatory 
change due to the 
COVID-19 
pandemic 



 
 

surrender of the premises. 
 

8-II.B. Supervisory quality control 
inspections will be conducted in 
accordance with the PHA’s Quality 
Control Plan. 
 

Supervisory quality control inspections will be conducted in accordance 
with the PHA’s Maintenance Plan. 
 

No Reflects that the 
Quality Control 
Plan is an integral 
part of the 
Maintenance 
Plan. 

8-II.C. Except at move-in inspections, the 
resident is not required to be present 
for the inspection. The resident may 
attend the inspection if he or she 
wish. 
 
If no one is at home, the inspector 
will enter the unit, conduct the 
inspection and leave a copy of the 
inspection report in the unit. For 
other entries when a resident is not 
home, the PHA will leave a notice of 
the date, time, and purpose of entry. 

Except at move-in inspections, the resident is not required to be present 
for the inspection. The resident may attend the inspection if they wish. 
 
If no one is at home, the inspector will enter the unit, conduct the 
inspection and provide a copy of the inspection report upon request. 
For other entries when a resident is not home, the PHA will leave a notice 
of the date, time, and purpose of entry. 

No Update to gender 
neutral language. 
 
Reduces 
administrative 
burden of 
providing copies 
when not all 
residents wish to 
receive a copy. 

8-II.D. Notices of lease violation will also be 
issued to residents who purposely 
disengage the unit’s smoke detector. 
Only one warning will be given. A 
second incidence will result in lease 
termination. 
 

Notices of lease violation will also be issued to residents who purposely 
disengage the unit’s smoke detector. Only one warning will be given. A 
second incidence will result in a lease termination notice. 
 

No Reflects the 
progressive lease 
enforcement 
procedure. No 
lease is 
terminated 
without 
opportunities for 
remedy except in 
extreme 
circumstances 
that qualify for a 
24-HR Notice of 
Termination. 

9-I.C. Families generally are required to 
participate in an annual 
reexamination process, and adult 
family members may be required to 
attend an interview. If participation 
in an in- person interview poses a 
hardship because of a family 
member’s disability, the family 
should contact the PHA to request a 

The PHA’s procedure for conducting annual reexaminations will be through 
mail, unless the family requests an in-person interview.   
 
If a family fails to comply with the PHA’s annual reexamination process, 
the family will be in violation of their lease and may be terminated in 
accordance with the policies in Chapter 13. 
 
An advocate, interpreter, or other assistant may assist the family in the 
interview process. 

No Updates the 
annual 
reexamination 
interview process 
to reflect 
participant 
preference 



 
 

reasonable accommodation. 
 
If a family fails to comply with the 
PHA’s annual reexamination process, 
the family will be in violation of their 
lease and may be terminated in 
accordance with the policies in 
Chapter 13. 
 
An advocate, interpreter, or other 
assistant may assist the family in the 
interview process. 

9-II.B. For families paying flat rents, the 
PHA will conduct a full reexamination 
of family income and composition 
once every 3 years. 

For families paying flat rents, the PHA may conduct a full reexamination 
of family income and composition annually. 

No Updated to reflect 
actual process, 
annual review 
needed to provide 
annual option of 
flat rent 

9-III.B. Families must request PHA approval 
to add a new family member, live-in 
aide, foster child, or foster adult. This 
includes any person not on the lease 
who is expected to stay in the unit 
for more than 14 calendar days per 
year during any 12-month period and 
therefore no longer qualifies as a 
“guest.” Requests must be made in 
writing and approved by the PHA 
prior to the individual moving into the 
unit. 

Families must request PHA approval to add a new family member, live-in 
aide, foster child, or foster adult. This includes any person not on the lease 
who is expected to stay in the unit for more than 14 consecutive days or 
30 cumulative days per year during any 12-month period and therefore no 
longer qualifies as a “guest.” Requests must be made in writing and 
approved by the PHA prior to the individual moving into the unit. 

No Updated to reflect 
guest policy in 
community rules 

9-III.C. For families receiving the Earned 
Income Disallowance (EID), the PHA 
will conduct an interim 
reexamination at the start, to adjust 
the exclusion with any changes in 
income, and at the conclusion of the 
24-month eligibility period. 
 
If the family has reported zero 
income, the PHA will conduct an 
interim reexamination every 3 
months as long as the family 
continues to report that they have no 
income. 

For families receiving the Earned Income Disallowance (EID), the PHA will 
conduct an interim reexamination at the start, to adjust the exclusion with 
any changes in income, and at the conclusion of the 24-month eligibility 
period. 
 
If the family has reported zero income, the PHA will conduct an interim 
reexamination every 3 months as long as the family continues to report 
that they have no income. 
 
The PHA may conduct an interim reexamination at any time in order to 
correct an error in a previous reexamination, or to investigate a tenant 
fraud complaint. 

No Simplify language 



 
 

 
If at the time of the annual 
reexamination, it is not feasible to 
anticipate a level of income for the 
next 12 months (e.g. seasonal or 
cyclic income), the PHA will schedule 
an interim reexamination to coincide 
with the end of the period for which 
it is feasible to project income. 
 
If at the time of the annual 
reexamination, tenant declarations 
were used on a provisional basis due 
to the lack of third-party verification, 
and third-party verification becomes 
available, the PHA will conduct an 
interim reexamination. 
 
The PHA may conduct an interim 
reexamination at any time in order to 
correct an error in a previous 
reexamination, or to investigate a 
tenant fraud complaint. 

9-III.C. Families are required to report all 
increases in income, including in 
earned income, including new 
employment at the next Annual 
Recertification. 
 
Families participating in the Family 
Self-Sufficiency (FSS) program may 
request and receive an increase in 
rent through an interim 
reexamination. 
 
Families are not required to report 
any other changes in income or 
expenses. 

Families are required to report all increases in income, including in earned 
income, including new employment at the next Annual Recertification 
(beginning with the mailing of the Annual review packet to the 
tenant up until the effective date of the Annual Reexam). 
 
The PHA will only conduct interim reexaminations for families that qualify 
for the earned income disallowance (EID), and only when the EID family’s 
share of rent will change as a result of the increase. In all other cases, the 
PHA will note the information in the tenant file but will not conduct an 
interim reexamination. 

No Simplify language 
and align with 
Administrative 
Plan 

9-III.D. The family may notify the PHA of 
changes either orally or in writing. If 
the family provides oral notice, the 
PHA will require the family to submit 
the changes on a PHA form. 
 

The family may notify the PHA of changes either orally or in writing. If the 
family provides oral notice, the PHA may also require the family to submit 
the changes in writing. 
 
Generally, the family will not be required to attend an interview for an 
interim reexamination. However, if the PHA determines that an interview 

No Clarifies the 
notification 
requirement 



 
 

Generally, the family will not be 
required to attend an interview for an 
interim reexamination. However, if 
the PHA determines that an interview 
is warranted, the family will be 
required to attend. 
 
Based on the type of change 
reported, the PHA will determine the 
documentation the family will be 
required to submit. The family must 
submit any required information or 
documents within 14 calendar days 
of receiving a request from the PHA. 
This time frame may be extended for 
good cause with PHA approval. The 
PHA will accept required 
documentation by mail, by fax, 
electronically or in person. 

is warranted, the family will be required to attend. 
 
Based on the type of change reported, the PHA will determine the 
documentation the family will be required to submit. The family must 
submit any required information or documents within 14 calendar days of 
receiving a request from the PHA. This time frame may be extended for 
good cause with PHA approval. The PHA will accept required 
documentation by mail, by fax, electronically or in person. 

12-III.C Except where reasonable 
accommodation is being 
requested, the PHA will only consider 
transfer requests from residents that 
meet the following requirements: 
Have no lease enforcement or 
termination of tenancy in progress 
 
Have no current housekeeping lease 
violations or history of damaging 
property 
 
A resident with housekeeping 
standards violations or lease 
enforcement or termination of 
tenancy in progress will be sent a 
transfer request denial letter until the 
resident passes a follow-up 
housekeeping inspection or all lease 
enforcement has been cured. 
Exceptions to the good record 
requirement may be made with 
Division director approval. 
Exceptions will also be made when 
the PHA determines that a transfer is 

Except where reasonable accommodation or an emergency 
transfer under VAWA is being requested, the PHA will only consider 
transfer requests from residents that meet the following requirements: 
Have no lease enforcement or termination of tenancy in progress 
 
Have no current housekeeping lease violations or history of damaging 
property 
 
A resident with housekeeping standards violations or lease enforcement or 
termination of tenancy in progress will be sent a transfer request denial 
letter until the resident passes a follow-up housekeeping inspection or all 
lease enforcement has been cured. 

No Simplifies transfer 
language 



 
 

necessary to protect the health or 
safety of a resident who is a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking, and who 
provides documentation of abuse in 
accordance with section 16-VII.D of 
this ACOP. Tenants who are not in 
good standing may still request an 
emergency transfer under VAWA. 
If a family requested to be placed on 
the waiting list for a unit size smaller 
than designated by the occupancy 
guidelines, the family will not be 
eligible to transfer to a larger size 
unit for a period of two years from 
the date of admission, unless they 
have a change in family size or 
composition, or it is needed as a 
reasonable accommodation. 

12-III.E. The resident will bear all of the costs 
of transfer s/he requests. However, 
the PHA will bear the transfer costs 
when the transfer is done as a 
reasonable accommodation. 

The resident will bear all of the costs of transfer they requests. However, 
the PHA will bear the transfer costs when the transfer is done as a 
reasonable accommodation. 

No Change to gender 
neutral language 
 

12.IV.D. When the transfer has been 
requested by the resident, the 
refusal of that offer without good 
cause will result in the removal of 
the family from the transfer list. 
In such cases, the family must wait 
six months to reapply for another 
transfer. 

When the transfer has been requested by the resident, the refusal of that 
offer without good cause will result in the removal of the family from the 
transfer list and all bedroom-size wait lists the family was placed 
on as a result of the transfer request. In such cases, the family must 
wait one year to reapply for another transfer. 

 

No Clarifies and 
simplifies transfer 
langauge 

12.IV.F. The reexamination date will not be 
changed when a transfer takes 
place. 

The reexamination date will be changed when a transfer takes place, 
except for emergency transfers and temporary transfers related 
to Demolition, Disposition, Revitalizations, or Rehabilitation. 

No Clarifies when a 
reexamination 
will take place  

13-III.C. Failure to permit access to the unit 
by the PHA after proper advance 
notification for the purpose of 
performing routine inspections and 
maintenance, for making 
improvements or repairs, or to 
show the dwelling unit for re-
leasing, or without advance notice if 
there is reasonable cause to believe 

Failure to permit access to the unit by the PHA after proper advance 
notification for the purpose of performing routine inspections and 
maintenance, for making improvements or repairs, or without advance 
notice if there is reasonable cause to believe that an emergency exists 

No Clarification of 
unit entry process 



 
 

that an emergency exists 
14-I.B. A request for an informal hearing 

must be made by phone or in writing 
by the close of the business day, no 
later than 14 calendar days from the 
date of the PHA’s notification of 
denial of admission. 
 
The PHA will schedule and send 
written notice of the informal hearing 
within 14 calendar days of the 
family’s request. 

A request for an informal hearing must be made by phone or in writing by 
the close of the business day, no later than 14 calendar days from the date 
of the PHA’s notification of denial of admission. 
 
The PHA will schedule and send written notice of the informal hearing 
within 14 calendar days of the family’s request. 
 
If the PHA informal hearing will be conducted remotely, at the time the 
notice is sent to the family, the family will be informed: 
Regarding the processes involved in a remote informal hearing; 
 
That the PHA will provide technical assistance prior to and during the 
informal hearing, if needed; and 
 
That if the family or any individual witness has any technological, resource, 
or accessibility barriers preventing them from fully accessing the remote 
informal hearing, the family may inform the PHA and the PHA will assist 
the family in either resolving the issues or allow the family to participate 
in an in-person informal hearing, as appropriate. 

Yes New language 
added regarding 
remote hearings 
and the technical 
assistance 
available to 
participants 

14-I.B.  Remote Informal Hearings [Notice PIH 2020-32] 
There is no requirement that informal hearings be conducted in-person, 
and as such, HUD allows PHAs to conduct all or a portion of their informal 
hearings remotely either over the phone, via video conferencing, or 
through other virtual platforms. If the PHA chooses to conduct remote 
informal hearings, applicants may still request an in-person informal 
hearing, as applicable. 
PHA Policy 
The PHA has the sole discretion to require that informal hearings be 
conducted remotely in case of local, state, or national physical distancing 
orders, and in cases of inclement weather or natural disaster.  
In addition, the PHA will conduct an informal hearing remotely upon 
request of the applicant as a reasonable accommodation for a person with 
a disability, if an applicant does not have child care or transportation that 
would enable them to attend the informal hearing, or if the applicant 
believes an in-person informal hearing would create an undue health risk. 
The PHA will consider other reasonable requests for a remote informal 
hearing on a case-by-case basis. 
Ensuring Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities and LEP Individuals 
As with in-person informal hearings, the platform for conducting remote 
informal hearings must be accessible to persons with disabilities and the 
informal hearing must be conducted in accordance with Section 504 and 
accessibility requirements. This includes ensuring any information, 
websites, emails, digital notifications, and other virtual platforms are 

Yes Adds information 
regarding ability 
to request remote 
informal hearing 



 
 

accessible for persons with vision, hearing, and other disabilities. Further, 
providing effective communication in a digital context may require the use 
of individualized auxiliary aids or services, such as audio description, 
captioning, sign language and other types of interpreters, keyboard 
accessibility, accessible documents, screen reader support, and 
transcripts. Auxiliary aids or services must be provided in accessible 
formats, in a timely manner, and in such a way to protect the privacy and 
independence of the individual. PHAs may never request or require that 
individuals with disabilities provide their own auxiliary aids or services, 
including for remote informal hearings. 
If no method of conducting a remote informal hearing is available that 
appropriately accommodates an individual’s disability, the PHA may not 
hold against the individual his or her inability to participate in the remote 
informal review, and the PHA should consider whether postponing the 
remote informal hearing to a later date is appropriate or whether there is 
a suitable alternative. 
Due to the individualized nature of disability, the appropriate auxiliary aid 
or service necessary, or reasonable accommodation, will depend on the 
specific circumstances and requirements.  
As with in-person hearings, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) requirements 
also apply to remote informal hearings, including the use of interpretation 
services and document translation. See Chapter 2 for a more thorough 
discussion of accessibility and LEP requirements, all of which apply in the 
context of remote informal hearings. 
Conducting Remote Informal Hearings [Notice PIH 2020-32] 
The PHA must ensure that the lack of technology or inability to use 
technology for remote informal hearings does not pose a disadvantage to 
families that may not be apparent to the PHA. The PHA should determine 
through a survey or other means if these barriers exist prior to conducting 
the remote informal hearing and, if the family does not have the proper 
technology to fully participate, either postpone the informal hearing or 
provide an alternative means of access. 
As with in-person informal hearings, the PHA must provide all materials 
presented, whether paper or electronic, to the family prior to the remote 
informal hearing. The family must also be provided with an accessible 
means by which to transmit their own evidence. 
The PHA must ensure that the applicant has the right to hear and be heard. 
All PHA policies and processes for remote informal hearings will be 
conducted in accordance with due process requirements and will be in 
compliance with HUD regulations at 24 CFR 966.56 and the guidance for 
conducting remote hearings specified in Notice PIH 2020-32. 
PHA Policy 
The PHA will conduct remote informal hearings via a video conferencing 
platform, when available. If, after attempting to resolve any barriers, 



 
 

applicants are unable to adequately access the video conferencing 
platform at any point, or upon applicant request, the informal hearing will 
be conducted by telephone conferencing call-in. If the family is unable to 
adequately access the telephone conferencing call-in at any point, the 
remote informal hearing will be postponed, and an in-person alternative 
will be provided promptly within a reasonable time. 
At least five business days prior to scheduling the remote hearing, the PHA 
will provide the family with login information and/or conferencing call-in 
information and an electronic copy of all materials being presented via first 
class mail and/or email. The notice will advise the family of technological 
requirements for the hearing and request the family notify the PHA of any 
known barriers. The PHA will resolve any barriers using the guidance in 
Section 6 of Notice PIH 2020-32, including offering the family the 
opportunity to attend an in-person hearing. 
If the informal hearing is to be conducted remotely, the PHA will require 
the family to provide any documents directly relevant to the informal 
hearing at least 24 hours before the scheduled hearing through the mail, 
via email, or text. The PHA will scan and email copies of these documents 
to the PHA representative and to the person conducting the informal 
hearing the same day. 
Documents will be shared electronically whenever possible. 
The PHA will follow up the email with a phone call and/or email to the 
applicant at least one business day prior to the remote informal hearing to 
ensure that the applicant received all information and is comfortable 
accessing the video conferencing or call-in platform. 
The PHA will ensure that all electronic information stored or transmitted 
with respect to the informal hearing is secure, including protecting 
personally identifiable information (PII), and meets the requirements for 
accessibility for persons with disabilities and persons with LEP. 

14-III.C The PHA is located in a HUD-declared 
due process state. Therefore, the 
PHA will not offer grievance 
hearings for lease terminations 
involving criminal activity that 
threatens the health, safety, or right 
to peaceful enjoyment of the 
premises of other residents or 
employees of the PHA, for violent or 
drug-related criminal activity on or 
off the premises, or for any criminal 
activity that resulted in felony 
conviction of a household member. 

The PHA is located in a HUD-declared due process state. Therefore, the 
PHA may not offer grievance hearings for lease terminations involving 
criminal activity that threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful 
enjoyment of the premises of other residents or employees of the PHA, for 
violent or drug-related criminal activity on or off the premises, or for any 
criminal activity that resulted in felony conviction of a household member. 

No Allows flexibility 
in assessing the 
need for a 
requested 
grievance hearing 

14-III.D. The PHA will accept requests for an 
informal settlement of a grievance 

The PHA will accept requests for an informal settlement of a grievance 
either orally or in writing, to the PHA office within 14 calendar days. Within 

Yes New language 
regarding the 



 
 

either orally or in writing, to the PHA 
office within 5 business days of non-
payment of rent notice or 14 
calendar days for any other 
grievance. Within 14 calendar days 
of receipt of the request the PHA will 
arrange a meeting with the tenant at 
a mutually agreeable time and 
confirm such meeting in writing to 
the tenant. 
 
If a tenant fails to attend the 
scheduled meeting without prior 
notice, the PHA will reschedule the 
appointment only if the tenant can 
show good cause for failing to 
appear, or if it is needed as a 
reasonable accommodation for a 
person with disabilities. 
 
Good cause is defined as an 
unavoidable conflict which seriously 
affects the health, safety or welfare 
of the family. 

14 calendar days of receipt of the request the PHA will arrange a meeting 
with the tenant at a mutually agreeable time and confirm such meeting in 
writing to the tenant. 
 
The informal settlement may be conducted remotely as required 
by the PHA or may be conducted remotely upon consideration of 
the request of the tenant. See 14-III.G for information on how 
and under what circumstances remote informal settlements may 
be conducted. 
 
If a tenant fails to attend the scheduled meeting without prior notice, the 
PHA will reschedule the appointment only if the tenant can show good 
cause for failing to appear, or if it is needed as a reasonable 
accommodation for a person with disabilities. 
 
Good cause is defined as an unavoidable conflict which seriously affects 
the health, safety or welfare of the family. 

ability to conduct 
remote hearings 

14-III.E. The resident must submit a request, 
either orally or in writing, for a 
grievance hearing to the PHA within 
five business days of the tenant’s 
receipt of the summary of the 
informal settlement. 

The resident must submit written request (including emailed requests), for 
a grievance hearing to the PHA within five business days of the tenant’s 
receipt of the summary of the informal settlement. 

No Change to require 
grievance 
requests to be 
submitted in 
writing to ensure 
appropriate 
tracking and 
response 

14-III.G.  14-III.G. REMOTE HEARINGS [Notice PIH 2020-32] 
There is no requirement that grievance hearings be conducted in-person, 
and as such, HUD allows PHAs to conduct all or a portion of their grievance 
hearings remotely either over the phone, via video conferencing, or 
through other virtual platforms. If the PHA chooses to conduct remote 
grievance hearings, applicants may still request an in-person hearing, as 
applicable. 
PHA Policy 
The PHA has the sole discretion to require that hearings be conducted 
remotely in case of local, state, or national physical distancing orders, and 
in cases of inclement weather or natural disaster. 
In addition, the PHA will conduct a hearing remotely upon request as a 

Yes New language 
regarding remote 
hearings 



 
 

reasonable accommodation for a person with a disability, if a tenant does 
not have child care or transportation that would enable them to attend the 
hearing, or if the tenant believes an in-person hearing would create an 
undue health risk. The PHA will consider other reasonable requests for a 
remote hearing on a case-by-case basis. 
Discovery of Documents Before the Remote Hearing  
PHA Policy 
If the hearing will be conducted remotely, the PHA will compile a hearing 
packet, consisting of all documents the PHA intends to produce at the 
hearing. The PHA will mail copies of the hearing packet to the tenant, the 
tenant’s representatives, if any, and the hearing officer at least three days 
before the scheduled remote hearing. The original hearing packet will be 
in the possession of the PHA representative and retained by the PHA. 
If the hearing is to be conducted remotely, the PHA will require the 
resident to provide any documents directly relevant to the hearing at least 
24 hours before the scheduled hearing through the mail, via email, or text. 
The PHA will scan and email copies of these documents to the hearing 
officer and the PHA representative the same day they are received. 
Documents will be shared electronically whenever possible. 
  
Ensuring Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities ad LEP Individuals 
As with in-person grievance hearings, the platform for conducting remote 
grievance hearings must be accessible to persons with disabilities and the 
grievance hearings must be conducted in accordance with Section 504 and 
accessibility requirements. This includes ensuring any information, 
websites, emails, digital notifications, and other virtual platforms are 
accessible for persons with vision, hearing, and other disabilities. Further, 
providing effective communication in a digital context may require the use 
of individualized auxiliary aids or services, such as audio description, 
captioning, sign language and other types of interpreters, keyboard 
accessibility, accessible documents, screen reader support, and 
transcripts. Auxiliary aids or services must be provided in accessible 
formats, in a timely manner, and in such a way to protect the privacy and 
independence of the individual. PHAs may never request or require that 
individuals with disabilities provide their own auxiliary aids or services, 
including for remote grievance hearings. 
If no method of conducting a remote grievance hearing is available that 
appropriately accommodates an individual’s disability, the PHA may not 
hold against the individual his or her inability to participate in the remote 
grievance hearing, and the PHA should consider whether postponing the 
remote hearing to a later date is appropriate or whether there is a suitable 
alternative. 
Due to the individualized nature of disability, the appropriate auxiliary aid 
or service necessary, or reasonable accommodation will depend on the 



 
 

specific circumstances and requirements.  
As with in-person reviews, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) requirements 
also apply to remote grievance hearings, including the use of interpretation 
services and document translation. See Chapter 2 for a more thorough 
discussion of accessibility and LEP requirements, all of which apply in the 
context of remote grievance hearings. 
  
Conducting Hearings Remotely 
The PHA must ensure that the lack of technology or inability to use 
technology for remote grievance hearings does not pose a disadvantage 
to families that may not be apparent to the PHA. The PHA should 
determine through a survey or other means if these barriers exist prior to 
conducting the remote grievance hearing and, if the family does not have 
the proper technology to fully participate, either postpone the hearing or 
provide an alternative means of access. 
As with in-person grievance hearings, the PHA must provide all materials 
presented, whether paper or electronic, to the family prior to the remote 
grievance hearing. The family must also be provided with an accessible 
means by which to transmit their own evidence.  
The PHA’s essential responsibility is to ensure grievance hearings meet the 
requirements of due process and comply with HUD regulations. Therefore, 
all PHA policies and processes for remote grievance hearings will be 
conducted in accordance with due process requirements and will be in 
compliance with HUD regulations at 24 CFR 966.56 and the guidance for 
conducting remote hearings specified in Notice PIH 2020-32. 
 
PHA Policy 
The PHA will conduct remote grievance hearings via a video conferencing 
platform, when available. If, after attempting to resolve any barriers, 
participants are unable to adequately access the video conferencing 
platform at any point, or upon request, the grievance hearing will be 
conducted by telephone conferencing call-in. If the family is unable to 
adequately access the telephone conferencing call-in at any point, the 
remote grievance hearing will be postponed, and an in-person alternative 
will be provided promptly within a reasonable time. 
At least five business days prior to scheduling the remote hearing, the PHA 
will provide the family with login information and/or conferencing call-in 
information and an electronic copy of all materials being presented via first 
class mail and/or email. The notice will advise the family of technological 
requirements for the hearing and request the family notify the PHA of any 
known barriers. The PHA will resolve any barriers using the guidance in 
Section 6 of Notice PIH 2020-32, including offering the family the 
opportunity to attend an in-person hearing.  
The PHA will follow up with a phone call and/or email to the family at least 



 
 

one business day prior to the remote grievance hearing to ensure that the 
family received all information and is comfortable accessing the video 
conferencing or call-in platform.  
The PHA will ensure that all electronic information stored or transmitted 
with respect to the grievance hearing is secure, including protecting 
personally identifiable information (PII), and meets the requirements for 
accessibility for persons with disabilities and persons with LEP. 

14-III.G 
– 14-
III.H. 

The tenant will be allowed to copy 
any documents related to the 
hearing at a cost of $.25 per page. 
The family must request discovery of 
PHA documents no later than 12:00 
p.m. on the business day prior to the 
hearing. 

The tenant will be allowed to copy any documents related to the hearing 
at no cost to the family. The family must request discovery of PHA 
documents no later than 12:00 p.m. on the business day prior to the 
hearing. 

No The 
administrative 
burden of 
collecting this fee 
is larger than the 
amount charged. 
This will provide 
residents free 
access to their 
own informal 
settlement 
discussion and/or 
hearing materials 
for review in 
advance. 

 



 
 

KEY MODIFICATIONS TO THE HOMES FOR GOOD 
RENT ASSISTANCE ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN FISCAL YEAR 2023 

EFFECTIVE DATE 10-1-2022 TO 9-30-2023 
 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE FOLLOWING CHAPTERS 
 

Chapter 2: Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity 
 
Chapter 3: Eligibility 
  
Chapter 4: Applications, Waiting List, and Tenant Selection 
 
Chapter 5: Briefings and Voucher Issuance 
 
Chapter 7: Verification 
 
Chapter 8: Housing Quality Standards and Rent Reasonableness Determinations 
 
Chapter 11: Reexaminations 
 
Chapter 15: Special Housing Types 
 
Chapter 16: Program Administration 
 
Chapter 17: Project-Based Vouchers 
 
Chapter 18: Project-Based Vouchers (PBV) Under the Rental Assistances Demonstration (RAD) Program 
 

  



KEY MODIFICATIONS TO THE HOMES FOR GOOD 
ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN FOR THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM (ADMIN PLAN) 

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE 10-1-2022 
 

Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

2-I.A. Executive Orders 11063 Executive Orders 11063 and 13988 Yes Prevent discrimination on 
gender identity or sexual 
orientation 

2-II.E. After a request for an accommodation is presented, the 
PHA will respond, in writing, within 14 business days.  
If the PHA denies a request for an accommodation 
because it is not reasonable (it would impose an undue 
financial and administrative burden or fundamentally 
alter the nature of the PHA’s operations), the PHA will 
discuss with the family whether an alternative 
accommodation could effectively address the family’s 
disability-related needs without a fundamental alteration 
to the HCV program and without imposing an undue 
financial and administrative burden. 
If the PHA believes that the family has failed to identify 
a reasonable alternative accommodation after interactive 
discussion and negotiation, the PHA will notify the 
family, in writing, of its determination within 14 business 
days from the date of the most recent discussion or 
communication with the family.   

After a request for an accommodation is 
presented, the PHA will respond, in writing, 
within 14 business days.  
If the PHA denies a request for an 
accommodation because there is no 
relationship, or nexus, found between the 
disability and the requested 
accommodation, the notice will inform the 
family of the right to appeal the PHA’s 
decision through an informal  review (if 
applicable) or informal hearing (see 
Chapter 16). 
If the PHA denies a request for an 
accommodation because it is not reasonable (it 
would impose an undue financial and 
administrative burden or fundamentally alter the 
nature of the PHA’s operations), the PHA will 
discuss with the family whether an alternative 
accommodation could effectively address the 
family’s disability-related needs without a 
fundamental alteration to the HCV program and 
without imposing an undue financial and 
administrative burden. 
If the PHA believes that the family has failed to 
identify a reasonable alternative accommodation 
after interactive discussion and negotiation, the 
PHA will notify the family, in writing, of its 
determination within 14 business days from the 
date of the most recent discussion or 
communication with the family.   

No Provides clear guidance of 
steps 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

2-III.B. The PHA will utilize a language line for telephone 
interpreter services. 
Where LEP persons desire, they will be permitted to use, 
at their own expense, an interpreter of their own 
choosing, in place of or as a supplement to the free 
language services offered by the PHA. The interpreter 
may be a family member or friend.  

The PHA will utilize a language line for 
telephone interpreter services. 
When exercising the option to conduct 
remote briefings, informal reviews, or 
hearings, however, the PHA will 
coordinate with a remote interpretation 
service which, when available, uses video 
conferencing technology rather than 
voice-only interpretation.  
Where LEP persons desire, they will be 
permitted to use, at their own expense, an 
interpreter of their own choosing, in place of or 
as a supplement to the free language services 
offered by the PHA. The PHA, at its 
discretion, may choose to use the 
language services even when LEP persons 
desire to use an interpreter of their 
choosing. The interpreter may be a family 
member or friend. If the interpreter chosen 
by the family is a minor, the PHA will not 
rely on the minor to serve as the 
interpreter. 

No Allows additional access 
points to engage with 
Homes for Good 

3-I.L. The PHA will request verification of the family member’s 
permanent absence from a responsible medical 
professional. If the responsible medical professional 
cannot provide a determination, the person will be 
considered temporarily absent. If the family certifies that 
the family member is confined on a permanent basis, 
they may present, and the PHA will consider, any 
additional documentation or evidence. 

An individual confined to a nursing home 
or hospital on a permanent basis is not 
considered a family member. 
The PHA will request verification of the family 
member’s permanent absence from a 
responsible medical professional. If the 
responsible medical professional cannot provide 
a determination, the person will be considered 
temporarily absent. If the family certifies that 
the family member is confined on a permanent 
basis, they may present, and the PHA will 
consider, any additional documentation or 
evidence. 

No Provides clarity on who is 
a family member 

3-I.M. A family’s request for a live-in aide must be made in 
writing. Written verification will be required from a 
reliable, knowledgeable professional, such as a doctor, 
social worker, or case worker, that the live-in aide is 
essential for the care and well-being of the elderly, near-
elderly, or disabled family member. For continued 
approval, the family may submit a new, written request-

A family’s request for a live-in aide may be 
made either orally or in writing. Written 
verification will be required from a reliable, 
knowledgeable professional, such as a doctor, 
social worker, or case worker, that the live-in 
aide is essential for the care and well-being of 
the elderly, near-elderly, or disabled family 

No Provides flexibility on how 
families can communicate 
their request for a live in 
aide. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

subject to PHA verification-at each annual 
reexamination. 

member. For continued approval, the family 
may submit a new, written request-subject to 
PHA verification-at each annual reexamination. 

3-II.B. The PHA will not provide assistance to a family before 
the verification of at least one family member. 

The PHA will not provide assistance to a family 
before the verification of at least one family 
member as a citizen, national, or eligible 
non-citizen. 

No Provides clarification for 
eligibility 

3-II.F. None Existing Tenant Search 
Prior to admission to the program, the PHA 
must search for all household members using 
the EIV Existing Tenant Search module. The 
PHA must review the reports for any SSA 
matches involving another PHA or a multifamily 
entity and follow up on any issues identified. 
The PHA must provide the family with a copy of 
the Existing Tenant Search results if requested. 
At no time may any family member receive 
duplicative assistance. 
If the tenant is a new admission to the PHA, 
and a match is identified at a multifamily 
property, the PHA must report the program 
admission date to the multifamily property and 
document the notification in the tenant file. The 
family must provide documentation of move-out 
from the assisted unit, as applicable. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA will contact the PHA or owner 
identified in the report to confirm that 
the family has moved out of the unit 
and obtain documentation of current 
tenancy status, including a form HUD-
50058 or 50059, as applicable, showing 
an end of participation. The PHA will 
only approve assistance contingent 
upon the move-out from the currently 
occupied assisted unit. 

Debts Owed to PHAs and Terminations 
All adult household members must sign the 
form HUD-52675 Debts Owed to Public Housing 

Yes Ensure recipients are not 
receiving subsidy 
elsewhere or owe debts 
to other Public Housing 
Agencies. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

and Terminations. Prior to admission to the 
program, the PHA must search for each adult 
family member in the Debts Owed to PHAs and 
Terminations module. 
If a current or former tenant disputes the 
information in the module, the tenant should 
contact the PHA directly in writing to dispute 
the information and provide any documentation 
that supports the dispute. If the PHA 
determines that the disputed information is 
incorrect, the PHA will update or delete the 
record from EIV. Former tenants may dispute 
debt and termination information for a period of 
up to three years from the end of participation 
date in the program. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA will require each adult 
household member to sign the form 
HUD-52675 once at the eligibility 
determination. Any new members 
added to the household after admission 
will be required to sign the form HUD-
52675 prior to being added to the 
household. 
The PHA will search the Debts Owed to 
PHAs and Terminations module as part 
of the eligibility determination for new 
households and as part of the screening 
process for any household members 
added after the household is admitted 
to the program. If any information on 
debts or terminations is returned by the 
search, the PHA will determine if this 
information warrants a denial in 
accordance with the policies in Part III 
of this chapter. 

Income and IVT Reports 
For each new admission, the PHA is required to 
review the EIV Income and IVT Reports to 
confirm and validate family reported income 
within 120 days of the IMS/PIC submission date 
of the new admission. The PHA must print and 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

maintain copies of the EIV Income and IVT 
reports in the tenant file and resolve any 
discrepancies with the family within 60 days of 
the EIV Income or IVT report dates. 

3-III.C. The family owes rent or other amounts to any PHA in 
connection with Section 8 or other public housing 
assistance under the 1937 Act, unless the family repays 
the full amount of the debt prior to being selected 
from the waiting list. 
If the family has not reimbursed any PHA for amounts 
the PHA paid to an owner under a HAP contract for rent, 
damages to the unit, or other amounts owed by the 
family under the lease, unless the family repays the full 
amount of the debt prior to being selected from the 
waiting list. 
The family has breached the terms of a repayment 
agreement entered into with the PHA, unless the family 
repays the full amount of the debt covered in the 
repayment agreement prior to being selected from the 
waiting list. 

The family owes rent or other amounts to any 
PHA in connection with Section 8 or other public 
housing assistance under the 1937 Act, unless 
the family repays the full amount of the debt or 
enters into a repayment agreement when 
selected from the waiting list. 
If the family has not reimbursed any PHA for 
amounts the PHA paid to an owner under a HAP 
contract for rent, damages to the unit, or other 
amounts owed by the family under the lease, 
unless the family repays the full amount of the 
debt or enters into a repayment 
agreement when selected from the waiting 
list. 
The family has breached the terms of a 
repayment agreement entered into with the 
PHA, unless the family repays the full amount of 
the debt covered in the repayment agreement 
or enters into a repayment agreement 
when selected from the waiting list. 

No Provides access to 
housing even while debts 
may be owed 

4-II.F. To update the waiting list, the PHA will send an update 
request via first class mail to each family on the waiting 
list to determine whether the family continues to be 
interested in, and to qualify for, the program. This 
update request will be sent to the last address that the 
PHA has on record for the family. The update request 
will provide a deadline by which the family must respond 
and will state that failure to respond will result in the 
applicant’s name being removed from the waiting list. 
The family’s response must be in writing and may be 
delivered in person, by mail, by email, or by fax. 
Responses should be postmarked or received by the 
PHA not later than 30 business days from the date of 
the PHA letter.  
If the family fails to respond within 30 business days, 
the family will be removed from the waiting list without 
further notice. 

To update the waiting list, the PHA will send an 
update request via first class mail to each family 
on the waiting list to determine whether the 
family continues to be interested in, and to 
qualify for, the program. This update request 
will be sent to the last address that the PHA has 
on record for the family. The update request 
will provide a deadline by which the family must 
respond and will state that failure to respond 
will result in the applicant’s name being 
removed from the waiting list without further 
notice. 
The family’s response must be in writing and 
may be delivered in person, by mail, by email, 
or by fax. Responses should be postmarked or 
received by the PHA not later than 30 business 
days from the date of the PHA letter.  

No Provides clarity on how 
removal from the waitlist 
happens 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

If the notice is returned by the post office with no 
forwarding address, the applicant will be removed from 
the waiting list without further notice. 
If the notice is returned by the post office with a 
forwarding address, the notice will be re-sent to the 
address indicated. The family will have 30 business days 
to respond from the date the letter was re-sent.   

If the family fails to respond within 30 business 
days, the family will be removed from the 
waiting list without further notice. 
If the notice is returned by the post office with 
no forwarding address, the applicant will be 
removed from the waiting list without further 
notice. 
If the notice is returned by the post office with 
a forwarding address, the notice will be re-sent 
to the address indicated. The family will have 30 
business days to respond from the date the 
letter was re-sent.  If the family fails to 
respond within this time frames, the 
family will be removed from the waiting 
list without further notice. 

4-
III.D. 

The PHA will notify the family by first class mail when it 
is selected from the waiting list. The notice will 
inform the family of the following:  
How to obtain an application packet 
If a notification letter is returned to the PHA with no 
forwarding address, the family will be removed from the 
waiting list. A notice of denial (see Chapter 3) will 
be sent to the family’s address of record, as well 
as to any known alternate address. 

The PHA will notify the family by first class mail 
when it is selected from the waiting list. The 
notification will contain the full 
application packet. 
If a notification letter is returned to the PHA 
with no forwarding address, the family will be 
removed from the waiting list, without further 
notice. 

No Provides clarity on how 
the process functions. 

5-I.B. The PHA must give the family an oral briefing and 
provide the family with a briefing packet 
containing written information about the 
program. Families may be briefed individually or 
in groups. At the briefing, the PHA must ensure 
effective communication in accordance with 
Section 504 requirements (Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973), and ensure that the 
briefing site is accessible to individuals with 
disabilities. For a more thorough discussion of 
accessibility requirements, refer to Chapter 2. 

PHA Policy 
Briefings may be conducted in group 
meetings or remotely. 
Generally, all adult family members are 
required to attend the briefing. If any 
adult member is unable to attend, the PHA 
may waive this requirement as long as the 

Prior to issuance of a voucher, the PHA 
must give the family an oral briefing and 
provide the family with a briefing packet 
containing written information about the 
program. Families may be briefed in 
individual face-to-face meetings, through 
group briefing sessions, or via remote 
briefing sessions. 

PHA Policy 
Families will be notified of their 
eligibility for assistance at the time 
they are invited to a briefing. The 
notice will be sent by first class 
mail and may also be sent by email 
if the family has provided a valid 
email address to the PHA. 
The notice will advise the family of 
the type of briefing, who is 

Yes Allows for remote 
briefings 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

head, spouse, or co-head attends the 
briefing.   
Families that attend group or remote 
briefings and still need individual 
assistance will be referred to an 
appropriate PHA staff person. 
Briefings will be conducted in English. For 
limited English proficient (LEP) applicants, 
the PHA will provide translation services 
in accordance with the PHA’s LEP plan 
(See Chapter 2). 
 

Notification and Attendance 
PHA Policy 
Families will be notified of their eligibility 
for assistance at the time they are invited 
to attend a briefing. The notice will 
identify who is required to attend the 
briefing, as well as the date and time of 
the scheduled briefing, and if briefing held 
remotely how to access the briefing.  
If the notice is returned by the post office 
with no forwarding address, the applicant 
will be denied and their name will not be 
placed back on the waiting list. If the 
notice is returned by the post office with a 
forwarding address, the notice will be re-
sent to the address indicated. 
Applicants who fail to attend a scheduled 
briefing will be scheduled for another 
briefing automatically. The PHA will notify 
the family of the date and time of the 
second scheduled briefing. Applicants who 
fail to attend two scheduled briefings, 
without prior PHA approval, will be denied 
assistance (see Chapter 3). 

required to be present at the 
briefing, and the date and time of 
the briefing. The notice will also 
inform the family of any additional 
requirements for in-person or 
remote briefings as addressed in 
relevant policy elsewhere in this 
section.  
If the notice is returned by the 
post office with no forwarding 
address, the applicant will be 
denied and their name will not be 
placed back on the waiting list. If 
the notice is returned by the post 
office with a forwarding address, 
the notice will be resent to the 
address indicated. 

 
In-Person Briefings 
At the briefing, the PHA must ensure 
effective communication in accordance 
with Section 504 requirements (Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973) and 
ensure that the briefing site is accessible 
to individuals with disabilities. For a more 
thorough discussion of accessibility 
requirements, refer to Chapter 2. 

PHA Policy 
In-person briefings will generally 
be conducted in group meetings. 
At the family’s written or oral 
request, the PHA may provide an 
individual briefing. 
Generally, the head of household is 
required to attend the briefing. If 
the head of household is unable to 
attend, the PHA may approve 
another adult family member to 
attend the briefing. 
Families that attend group 
briefings and still need individual 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

assistance will be referred to an 
appropriate PHA staff person. 
Briefings will be conducted in 
English. For limited English 
proficient (LEP) applicants, the 
PHA will provide interpretation 
services in accordance with the 
PHA’s LEP plan (See Chapter 2). 

 
Attendance 

PHA Policy 
Applicants who fail to attend a 
scheduled in-person briefing will 
be scheduled for another briefing 
automatically. The PHA will notify 
the family of the date and time of 
the second scheduled briefing. 
Applicants who fail to attend two 
scheduled briefings, without prior 
PHA approval, will be denied 
assistance (see Chapter 3). 
 

Remote Briefings [Notice PIH 2020-32] 
Remote briefings may be conducted over 
the phone, via video conferencing, or 
through other virtual platforms. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA has the sole discretion to 
require that briefings be conducted 
remotely in case of local, state, or 
national physical distancing orders, 
and in cases of inclement weather 
or natural disaster. If the PHA 
schedules a remote briefing, the 
PHA will conduct a face-to-face 
briefing upon request of the 
applicant as a reasonable 
accommodation for a person with a 
disability if safety and health 
concerns can be reasonably 
addressed. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

In addition, the PHA will conduct a 
briefing remotely upon request of 
the applicant as a reasonable 
accommodation for a person with a 
disability, if an applicant does not 
have child care or transportation 
that would enable them to attend 
the briefing, or if the applicant 
believes an in-person briefing 
would create an undue health risk. 
The PHA will consider other 
reasonable requests for a remote 
briefing on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Accessibility Requirements for Persons 
with Disabilities and LEP Individuals 
As with in-person briefings, the platform 
for conducting remote briefings must be 
accessible and the briefing conducted in 
accordance with Section 504 and 
accessibility requirements. This includes 
ensuring any information, websites, 
emails, digital notifications, and other 
virtual platforms are accessible for 
persons with vision, hearing, and other 
disabilities. Further, providing effective 
communication in a digital context may 
require the use of individualized auxiliary 
aids or services, such as audio description, 
captioning, sign language and other types 
of interpreters, keyboard accessibility, 
accessible documents, screen reader 
support, and transcripts. Auxiliary aids or 
services must be provided in accessible 
formats, in a timely manner, and in such a 
way to protect the privacy and 
independence of the individual. 
If no method of conducting a remote 
briefing is available that appropriately 
accommodates an individual’s disability, 
the PHA may not hold against the 
individual his or her inability to participate 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

in the remote briefing, and the PHA 
should consider whether postponing the 
remote briefing to a later date is 
appropriate or whether there is a suitable 
alternative. 
Due to the individualized nature of 
disability, the appropriate auxiliary aid or 
service necessary, or reasonable 
accommodation, will depend on the 
specific circumstances. 
Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
requirements also apply to remote 
briefings, including the use of 
interpretation services and document 
translation. See Chapter 2 for a more 
thorough discussion of accessibility and 
LEP requirements, all of which apply in 
the context of remote briefings.  
 
Conducting Remote Briefings 
The PHA must ensure that the lack of 
technology or inability to use technology 
for remote briefings does not pose a 
disadvantage to families that may not be 
apparent to the PHA. The PHA must 
ensure that the family has appropriate 
technological access in order to fully 
participate in the remote briefing. 

PHA Policy 
At least 10 business days prior to 
scheduling the remote briefing, the 
PHA will provide written 
notification via first class mail 
and/or email to families 
participating in the briefing to 
advise of technological 
requirements and to request the 
family notify the PHA of any known 
barriers. The PHA will resolve any 
barriers using the guidance in 
Section 6 of Notice PIH 2020-32, 
including offering the family the 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

opportunity to attend an in-person 
briefing or have a one-on-one 
briefing over the phone, as 
appropriate. 
The PHA will conduct remote 
briefings via a video conferencing 
platform when available. If 
applicants are unable to 
adequately access the video 
conferencing platform, the briefing 
will be conducted by telephone 
conferencing call-in. If the family 
is unable to adequately access the 
telephone conferencing call-in, the 
remote briefing will be postponed, 
and an in-person alternative or 
one-on-one briefing over the 
phone will be provided. 
The PHA will provide login 
information and/or conferencing 
call-in information and an copy of 
the briefing packet via email at 
least five business days before the 
briefing.  
The PHA will ensure that all 
electronic information stored or 
transmitted as part of the briefing 
meets the requirements for 
accessibility for persons with 
disabilities and persons with LEP, 
and is secure, including ensuring 
personally identifiable information 
(PII) is protected. 
The PHA will ensure that families 
who participate in remote briefings 
have the opportunity to ask 
questions as part of the briefing. 
If families lose connectivity during 
any remote briefing or otherwise 
feel they were unable to access 
information presented during the 
briefing, the family may request a 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

one-on-one briefing over the 
phone or in person with the PHA. 

7-III.I. The PHA will check UIV sources and/or request 
information from third-party sources to verify that 
certain forms of income such as unemployment benefits, 
TANF, SS, SSI, and earnings are not being received by 
families claiming to have zero annual income. 

The PHA will check UIV sources and/or request 
information from third-party sources to verify 
that certain forms of income such as 
unemployment benefits, TANF, SS, SSI, and 
earnings are not being received by families 
claiming to have zero annual income. 
Households that claim zero income may 
be required to fill out and submit the 
PHA’s Zero Income Questionnaire.  

No Provides clarity to the 
process 

7-IV.D. Information to be Gathered 
The PHA will verify information about how the schedule 
for the claimed activity relates to the hours of care 
provided, the time required for transportation, the time 
required for study (for students), the relationship of the 
family member(s) to the child, and any special needs of 
the child that might help determine which family 
member is enabled to pursue an eligible activity. 
Seeking Work 
Whenever possible the PHA will use documentation 
from a state or local agency that monitors work-related 
requirements (e.g., welfare or unemployment). In such 
cases the PHA will request family-provided verification 
from the agency of the member’s job seeking efforts to 
date, and require the family to submit to the PHA any 
reports provided to the other agency.  
In the event third-party verification is not available, the 
PHA will provide the family with a form on which the 
family member must record job search efforts. The PHA 
will review this information at each subsequent 
reexamination for which this deduction is claimed. 
Furthering Education 
The PHA will request third-party documentation to 
verify that the person permitted to further his or her 
education by the child care is enrolled and provide 
information about the timing of classes for which the 
person is registered. The documentation may be 
provided by the family. 

Information to be Gathered 
The PHA may verify information about how the 
schedule for the claimed activity relates to the 
hours of care provided, the time required for 
transportation, the time required for study (for 
students), the relationship of the family 
member(s) to the child, and any special needs 
of the child that might help determine which 
family member is enabled to pursue an eligible 
activity. 
Seeking Work 
Whenever possible the PHA may use 
documentation from a state or local agency that 
monitors work-related requirements (e.g., 
welfare or unemployment). In such cases the 
PHA will request family-provided verification 
from the agency of the member’s job seeking 
efforts to date, and require the family to submit 
to the PHA any reports provided to the other 
agency.  
In the event third-party verification is not 
available, the PHA will provide the family with a 
form on which the family member must record 
job search efforts. The PHA may review this 
information at each subsequent reexamination 
for which this deduction is claimed. 
Furthering Education 

No Provides flexibility on how 
child-care is verified 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

Gainful Employment 
The PHA will seek third-party verification of the work 
schedule of the person who is permitted to work by the 
child care. In cases in which two or more family 
members could be permitted to work, the work 
schedules for all relevant family members may be 
verified. The documentation may be provided by the 
family. 

The PHA may request third-party 
documentation to verify that the person 
permitted to further their education by the 
child care is enrolled and provide information 
about the timing of classes for which the person 
is registered. The documentation may be 
provided by the family. 
Gainful Employment 
The PHA may seek third-party verification of 
the work schedule of the person who is 
permitted to work by the child care. In cases in 
which two or more family members could be 
permitted to work, the work schedules for all 
relevant family members may be verified. The 
documentation may be provided by the family. 

8-I.C. The following are considered life-threatening conditions: 
Any condition that jeopardizes the security of the unit 
Major plumbing leaks or flooding, waterlogged ceiling or 
floor in imminent danger of falling 
Natural or LP gas or fuel oil leaks 
Any electrical problem or condition that could result in 
shock or fire 
Absence of a working heating system when outside 
temperature is below 60 degrees Fahrenheit. 
Utilities not in service, including no running hot water 
Conditions that present the imminent possibility of injury  
Obstacles that prevent safe entrance or exit from the 
unit 
Absence of a functioning toilet in the unit 
Inoperable or missing smoke detectors  
Inoperable or missing Carbon Monoxide detectors in 
homes that contain a CO source 
If an owner fails to correct life-threatening conditions as 
required by the PHA, the PHA will enforce the HQS in 
accordance with HUD requirements. See 8-II-G. 
If a family fails to correct a family-caused life-
threatening condition as required by the PHA, the PHA 
will enforce the family obligations. See 8-II.H.  
The owner will be required to repair an inoperable 
smoke detector and/or Carbon Monoxide detector in a 
home with a CO source unless the PHA determines that 
the family has intentionally disconnected it (by removing 

The following are considered life-threatening 
conditions: 
Any condition that jeopardizes the security of 
the unit 
Major plumbing leaks or flooding, waterlogged 
ceiling or floor in imminent danger of falling 
Natural or LP gas or fuel oil leaks 
A fuel storage vessel, fluid line, valve, or 
connection that supplies fuel to a HVAC 
unit is leaking or a strong odor is detected 
with potential for explosion or fire or that 
results in a health risk if inhaled 
Any electrical problem or condition that could 
result in shock or fire 
A light fixture is readily accessible, is not 
securely mounted to the ceiling or wall, 
and electrical connections or wires are 
exposed 
A light fixture has a missing or broken 
bulb, and the open socket is readily 
accessible to the tenant during the day-
to-day use of the unit 
Any nicks, abrasions, or fraying of the 
insulation that exposes conducting wire 
Exposed bare wires or electrical 
connections 

No Provides clarity on life 
threatening conditions 
under Housing Quality 
Standards. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

batteries or other means). In this case, the family will be 
required to repair the smoke detector and/or Carbon 
Monoxide detector within 24 hours. 

Water leaking or ponding near any 
electrical device 
Any condition that poses a serious risk of 
electrocution or fire and poses an 
immediate life-threatening condition 
Absence of a working heating system when 
outside temperature is below 60 degrees 
Fahrenheit. 
Utilities not in service, including no running hot 
water 
Conditions that present the imminent possibility 
of injury  
Obstacles that prevent safe entrance or exit 
from the unit 
Absence of a functioning toilet in the unit 
Inoperable or missing smoke detectors as it 
pertains to HQS guidelines on placement 
in unit based on configurations of the 
unit.  
Inoperable or missing Carbon Monoxide 
detectors in homes that contain a CO source 
Gas/oil-fired water heater or heating, 
ventilation, or cooling system with 
missing, damaged, improper, or 
misaligned chimney venting 
The chimney or venting system on a fuel-
fired water heater is misaligned, 
negatively pitched, or damaged, which 
may cause improper or dangerous venting 
or gases 
A gas dryer vent is missing, damaged, or 
is visually determined to be inoperable, or 
the dryer exhaust is not vented to the 
outside 
A fuel-fired space heater is not properly 
vented or lacks available combustion air 
A non-vented space heater is present 
Safety devices on a fuel-fired space heater 
are missing or damaged 
The chimney or venting system on a fuel-
fired heating, ventilation, or cooling 
system is misaligned, negatively pitched, 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

or damaged, which may cause improper or 
dangerous venting of gas 
If an owner fails to correct life-threatening 
conditions as required by the PHA, the PHA will 
enforce the HQS in accordance with HUD 
requirements. See 8-II-G. 
If a family fails to correct a family-caused life-
threatening condition as required by the PHA, 
the PHA will enforce the family obligations. See 
8-II.H.  
The owner will be required to repair an 
inoperable smoke detector and/or Carbon 
Monoxide detector in a home with a CO source 
unless the PHA determines that the family has 
intentionally disconnected it (by removing 
batteries or other means). In this case, the 
family will be required to repair the smoke 
detector and/or Carbon Monoxide detector 
within 24 hours. 

8-II.A. None Remote Video Inspections (RVIs) [Notice 
PIH 2020-31] 
As an alternative to some or all on-site 
inspections, the PHA may, but is not 
required to, perform HQS inspections from 
a remote location using video streaming 
technology and a proxy at the inspection 
site. Since there may be some 
circumstances in which the application of 
technology provides insufficient 
information or evidence to allow the PHA 
to make appropriate determinations about 
whether a condition violates HQS, Notice 
PIH 2020-31 requires that if a PHA 
chooses to implement RVIs, the PHA 
should have policies and procedures in 
place to address such limitations. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA may conduct HQS 
inspection using RVI. 

Yes Allows for remote 
inspections 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

8-II.E. HUD requires a PHA supervisor or other qualified person 
to conduct quality control inspections of a sample of 
units to ensure that each inspector is conducting 
accurate and complete inspections and that there is 
consistency in the application of the HQS. 
The unit sample must include only units that have been 
inspected within the preceding 3 months. The selected 
sample will include (1) each type of inspection 
(initial, annual, and special), (2) inspections 
completed by each inspector, and (3) units from a 
cross-section of neighborhoods. 

HUD requires a PHA supervisor or other 
qualified person to conduct quality control 
inspections of a sample of units to ensure that 
each inspector is conducting accurate and 
complete inspections and that there is 
consistency in the application of the HQS. 
The unit sample must include only units that 
have been inspected within the preceding three 
months. The selected sample should be 
drawn to represent a cross section of 
neighborhoods and the work of a cross 
section of inspectors. 

Yes Streamlines the monitor 
inspection process 

11-
II.C. 

Families are required to report all changes in income or 
expense, including increases in earned income, including 
new employment, at the next Annual Recertification 
time period (beginning with the mailing of the Annual 
review packet to the tenant up until the effective date of 
the Annual Reexam). 
Families participating in the Family Self-
Sufficiency (FSS) program may request and 
receive an increase in rent through an interim 
reexamination. 
The PHA will only conduct interim reexaminations for 
families that qualify for the earned income disallowance 
(EID), and only when the EID family’s share of rent will 
change as a result of the increase. In all other cases, the 
PHA will note the information in the tenant file but will 
not conduct an interim reexamination. 

Families are required to report all changes in 
income or expense, including increases in 
earned income, including new employment, at 
the next Annual Recertification time period 
(beginning with the mailing of the Annual 
review packet to the tenant up until the 
effective date of the Annual Reexam). 
The PHA will only conduct interim 
reexaminations for families that qualify for the 
earned income disallowance (EID), and only 
when the EID family’s share of rent will change 
as a result of the increase. In all other cases, 
the PHA will note the information in the tenant 
file but will not conduct an interim 
reexamination. 

No Provides clarity, provides 
options for participants to 
increase escrow savings. 

11-
II.C. 

If a family reports a change that it was not required to 
report and that would result in an increase in the family 
share of the rent, the PHA will note the information in 
the tenant file, but will not conduct an interim 
reexamination. An example would be an FSS participant 
whose increases in rent are deposited into his or her FSS 
escrow account. 

If a family reports a change that it was not 
required to report and that would result in an 
increase in the family share of the rent, the PHA 
will note the information in the tenant file, but 
will not conduct an interim reexamination 
unless the family requests an interim to 
increase rent. An example would be an FSS 
participant whose increases in rent are 
deposited into his or her FSS escrow account. 

No Provides clarity, provides 
options for participants in 
the FSS program to 
increase escrow savings.  

11-
II.D. 

The decrease will be effective on the first day of the 
month following the month in which the change was 
reported and all required documentation was submitted. 
In cases where the change cannot be verified until 

The decrease will be effective on the first day of 
the month following the month in which the 
change was reported and all required 
documentation was submitted. In cases where 
the change cannot be processed until after the 

No Provides clarity on when a 
decrease will be 
processed when a change 
in income has occurred. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

after the date the change would have become effective, 
the change will be made retroactively.  
For example, an interim decrease is reported and all 
required documentation is provided to the PHA on April 
30th, but the PHA was not able to verify the changes 
until May 15th, the interim change will be made 
retroactive to May 1st. 

date the change would have become effective, 
the change will be made retroactively.  
A decrease that lasts less than 30 
calendar days will not be processed.  
For example, an interim decrease is reported 
and all required documentation is provided to 
the PHA on April 30th, but the PHA was not able 
to verify the changes until May 15th, the interim 
change will be made retroactive to May 1st. 

15-
VII.B. 

The PHA will impose additional eligibility requirements.  
To be eligible to participate in the homeownership 
option, families must meet the following criteria: 

• The family must participate and meet the 
graduation requirements for the Family Self-
Sufficiency (FSS) Program. 
• The family does not owe money to the PHA. 
• The family has not committed any serious or 
repeated violations of a PHA-assisted lease within 
the past year. 

The PHA will impose additional eligibility 
requirements.  To be eligible to participate in 
the homeownership option, families must meet 
the following criteria: 

• The family does not owe money to the 
PHA. 
• The family has not committed any 
serious or repeated violations of a PHA-
assisted lease within the past year. 

No  

15-
VII.I. 

Effective with new homeownership clients starting the 
program January 1, 2017 or later, homeownership 
clients may request to meet with their designated 
Housing Specialist in an in-person interview annually, 
either at the Homes for Good office or in the client’s 
home.  At this meeting the family must provide 
documentation of money spent on home repairs or 
provide documentation showing that they are saving at 
least the amount of their monthly maintenance/repair 
allowance. 

Effective with new homeownership clients 
starting the program January 1, 2017 or later, 
homeownership clients may request to meet 
with their designated Housing Specialist in an 
in-person interview annually, either at the 
Homes for Good office or in the client’s home.  
At this meeting the family may provide 
documentation of money spent on home repairs 
or provide documentation showing that they are 
saving at least the amount of their monthly 
maintenance/repair allowance. 

No[AS1]  

16-
III.B. 

A request for an informal review must be made in 
writing or verbally, and delivered to the PHA either in 
person or by first class mail, by the close of the business 
day, no later than 14 business days from the date of the 
PHA’s denial of assistance.  
The PHA must schedule and send written notice of the 
informal review within 14 business days of the family’s 
request. 

A request for an informal review must be made 
in writing or verbally, and delivered to the PHA 
either in person or by first class mail, by the 
close of the business day, no later than 14 
business days from the date of the PHA’s denial 
of assistance.  
The PHA must schedule and send written notice 
of the informal review within 14 business days 
of the family’s request. 
If the informal review will be conducted 
remotely, at the time the PHA notifies the 

No Allows for Informal 
Reviews to be conducted 
remotely 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

family of the informal review, the family 
will be informed: 
Regarding the processes to conduct a 
remote informal review; 
That, if needed, the PHA will provide 
technical assistance prior to and during 
the informal review; and 
That if the family or any individual 
witness has any technological, resource, 
or accessibility barriers preventing them 
from fully accessing the remote informal 
review, the family may inform the PHA 
and the PHA will assist the family in either 
resolving the issues or allow the family to 
participate in an in-person informal 
review, as appropriate. 

16-
III.B. 

Remote Informal Reviews 
All PHA policies and processes for remote 
informal reviews must be conducted in 
accordance with due process requirements and 
be in compliance with HUD regulations.  

PHA Policy 
The PHA has the sole discretion to require that 
informal reviews be conducted remotely in case 
of local, state, or national physical distancing 
orders, and in cases of inclement weather or 
natural disaster. 
In addition, the PHA will conduct an informal 
review remotely upon request of the 
applicant as a reasonable accommodation 
for a person with a disability, if an 
applicant does not have child care or 
transportation that would enable them to 
attend the informal review, or if the 
applicant believes an in-person informal 
review would create an undue health risk. 
The PHA will consider other reasonable requests 
for a remote informal review on a case-by-case 
basis. 

 
Conducting Remote Informal Reviews 

Remote Informal Reviews [Notice PIH 
2020-32] 
There is no requirement that informal 
reviews be conducted in-person and, as 
such, HUD allows PHAs to conduct all or a 
portion of their informal review remotely 
either over the phone, via video 
conferencing, or through other virtual 
platforms. If the PHA chooses to conduct 
remote informal reviews, applicants may 
still request an in-person informal review, 
as applicable.  

PHA Policy 
The PHA has the sole discretion to 
require that informal reviews be 
conducted remotely in case of local, 
state, or national physical distancing 
orders, and in cases of inclement 
weather or natural disaster. 
In addition, the PHA may provide a 
remote option to conduct an informal 
review. The PHA may also provide 
an in-person informal review upon 
the applicant’s request. The PHA will 
consider other reasonable requests for 

Yes Provides parameters on 
how Informal Reviews are 
to be conducted 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

The PHA must ensure that the applicant has the right to 
hear and be heard. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA will conduct remote informal 
reviews via telephone conferencing call-in 
or via videoconferencing. If the informal 
review will be conducted via 
videoconferencing, the PHA will ensure 
that all applicants, applicant 
representatives, PHA representatives and 
the person conducting the informal review 
can adequately access the platform (i.e., 
hear, be heard, see, and be seen). If any 
applicant, applicant representative, PHA 
representative, or person conducting the 
informal review is unable to effectively 
utilize the videoconferencing platform, the 
informal review will be conducted by 
telephone conferencing call-in. 
Whether the informal review is to be 
conducted via videoconferencing or 
telephone call-in, the PHA will provide all 
parties login information and/or 
conferencing call-in information before 
the review. 

a remote informal review on a case-by-
case basis. 

 
Ensuring Accessibility for Persons with 
Disabilities and LEP Individuals 
As with in-person informal reviews, the 
platform for conducting remote informal 
reviews must be accessible to persons 
with disabilities and the informal review 
must be conducted in accordance with 
Section 504 and accessibility 
requirements. This includes ensuring any 
information, websites, emails, digital 
notifications, and other virtual platforms 
are accessible for persons with vision, 
hearing, and other disabilities. Further, 
providing effective communication in a 
digital context may require the use of 
individualized auxiliary aids or services, 
such as audio description, captioning, sign 
language and other types of interpreters, 
keyboard accessibility, accessible 
documents, screen reader support, and 
transcripts. Auxiliary aids or services must 
be provided in accessible formats, in a 
timely manner, and in such a way to 
protect the privacy and independence of 
the individual. PHAs may never request or 
require that individuals with disabilities 
provide their own auxiliary aids or 
services, including for remote informal 
hearings. 
PHAs are required to make reasonable 
accommodations in policies, practices, 
and procedures to ensure persons with 
disabilities have a full and equal 
opportunity to participate in and benefit 
from all aspects of the informal review 
process. See Chapter 2 for a more detailed 
discussion of reasonable accommodation 
requirements. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

If no method of conducting a remote 
informal review is available that 
appropriately accommodates an 
individual’s disability, the PHA may not 
hold against the individual his or her 
inability to participate in the remote 
informal review, and the PHA should 
consider whether postponing the remote 
informal review to a later date is 
appropriate or whether there is a suitable 
alternative. 
Due to the individualized nature of 
disability, the appropriate auxiliary aid or 
service necessary, or reasonable 
accommodation, will depend on the 
specific circumstances and requirements. 
As with in-person reviews, Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) requirements also apply 
to remote informal reviews, including the 
use of interpretation services and 
document translation. See Chapter 2 for a 
more thorough discussion of accessibility 
and LEP requirements, all of which apply 
in the context of remote informal reviews. 
 
Conducting Remote Informal Reviews 
The PHA must ensure that the lack of 
technology or inability to use technology 
for remote informal reviews does not pose 
a disadvantage to families that may not 
be apparent to the PHA. The PHA should 
determine through a survey or other 
means if these barriers exist prior to 
conducting the remote informal review 
and, if the family does not have the proper 
technology to fully participate, either 
postpone the informal review or provide 
an alternative means of access. 
As with in-person informal reviews, the 
PHA must provide all materials presented, 
whether paper or electronic, to the family 
prior to the remote informal review. The 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

family must also be provided with an 
accessible means by which to transmit 
their own evidence. 
The PHA must ensure that the applicant has the 
right to hear and be heard. All PHA policies 
and processes for remote informal 
reviews must be conducted in accordance 
with due process requirements and be in 
compliance with HUD regulations at 24 
CFR 982.554 and guidance specified in 
Notice PIH 2020-32. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA will conduct remote 
informal reviews via a video 
conferencing platform, when 
available. If, after attempting to 
resolve any barriers, applicants are 
unable to adequately access the 
video conferencing platform at any 
point, or upon applicant request, 
the informal review will be 
conducted by telephone 
conferencing call-in. If the family 
is unable to adequately access the 
telephone conferencing call-in at 
any point, the remote informal 
review will be postponed, and an 
in-person alternative will be 
provided promptly within a 
reasonable time. 
Prior to scheduling the remote 
review, the PHA will provide the 
family with login information 
and/or conferencing call-in 
information and an electronic 
and/or physical copy of all 
materials being presented via first 
class mail and/or email. The notice 
will advise the family of 
technological requirements for the 
hearing and request the family 
notify the PHA of any known 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

barriers. The PHA will resolve any 
barriers using the guidance in 
Section 6 of Notice PIH 2020-32, 
including offering the family the 
opportunity to attend an in-person 
hearing. 
If the informal review is to be 
conducted remotely, the PHA will 
require the family to provide any 
documents directly relevant to the 
informal review at least 24 hours 
before the scheduled review 
through the mail, via email, or 
text. The PHA will scan and email 
copies of these documents to the 
PHA representative the same day. 
Documents will be shared 
electronically whenever possible. 
The PHA will ensure that all 
electronic information stored or 
transmitted with respect to the 
informal review is secure, 
including protecting personally 
identifiable information (PII), and 
meets the requirements for 
accessibility for persons with 
disabilities and persons with LEP. 

16-
III.C. 

Remote Informal Hearings 
The PHA’s essential responsibility is to ensure 
informal hearings meet the requirements of due 
process and comply with HUD regulations. 
Therefore, all PHA policies and processes for 
remote informal hearings will be conducted in 
accordance with due process requirements and 
will be in compliance with HUD regulations. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA has the sole discretion to require that 
informal hearings be conducted remotely in case 
of local, state, or national physical distancing 
orders, and in cases of inclement weather or 
natural disaster. 

Remote Informal Hearings [Notice PIH 2020-32] 
There is no requirement that informal 
hearings be conducted in-person, and as 
such, HUD allows PHAs to conduct all or a 
portion of their informal hearings 
remotely either over the phone, via video 
conferencing, or through other virtual 
platforms. If the PHA chooses to conduct 
remote informal hearings, applicants may 
still request an in-person informal 
hearing, as applicable.  

PHA Policy 
The PHA has the sole discretion to 
require that informal hearings be 
conducted remotely in case of local, 

Yes Provides parameters on 
how Informal Hearings 
are to be conducted 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

In addition, the PHA will conduct an 
informal hearing remotely upon request as 
a reasonable accommodation for a person 
with a disability, if a participant does not 
have child care or transportation that 
would enable them to attend the informal 
hearing, or if the participant believes an 
in-person hearing would create an undue 
health risk. The PHA will consider other 
reasonable requests for a remote informal 
hearing on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Conducting Informal Hearings Remotely 
In conducting any informal hearing remotely, the 
PHA shall ensure due process and that all parties 
are able to have full access to the hearing. 

PHA Policy 
The PHA will conduct remote informal 
hearings via telephone conferencing call-
in or via videoconferencing. If the informal 
hearing will be conducted via 
videoconferencing, the PHA will ensure 
that all participants, participant 
representatives, advocates, witnesses, 
PHA representatives, and the hearing 
officer can adequately access the platform 
(i.e., hear, be heard, see, and be seen). 
If any participant, representative, 
advocate, witness, PHA representative, or 
hearing officer is unable to effectively 
utilize the videoconferencing platform, the 
informal hearing will be conducted by 
telephone conferencing call-in.  
Whether the informal hearing is to be 
conducted via videoconferencing or 
telephone call-in, the PHA will provide all 
parties login information and/or 
telephone call-in information before the 
hearing. 

state, or national physical distancing 
orders, and in cases of inclement 
weather or natural disaster. 
In addition, the PHA may provide a 
remote option to conduct an 
informal hearing. The PHA may 
also provide an in-person informal 
hearing upon the participant’s 
request. The PHA will consider 
other reasonable requests for a 
remote informal hearing on a case-
by-case basis. 

 
Ensuring Accessibility for Persons with 
Disabilities and LEP Individuals 
As with in-person informal hearings, the 
platform for conducting remote informal 
hearings must be accessible to persons 
with disabilities and the informal hearings 
must be conducted in accordance with 
Section 504 and accessibility 
requirements. This includes ensuring any 
information, websites, emails, digital 
notifications, and other virtual platforms 
are accessible for persons with vision, 
hearing, and other disabilities. Further, 
providing effective communication in a 
digital context may require the use of 
individualized auxiliary aids or services, 
such as audio description, captioning, sign 
language and other types of interpreters, 
keyboard accessibility, accessible 
documents, screen reader support, and 
transcripts. Auxiliary aids or services must 
be provided in accessible formats, in a 
timely manner, and in such a way to 
protect the privacy and independence of 
the individual. PHAs may never request or 
require that individuals with disabilities 
provide their own auxiliary aids or 
services, including for remote informal 
hearings. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

PHAs are required to make reasonable 
accommodations in policies, practices, 
and procedures to ensure persons with 
disabilities have a full and equal 
opportunity to participate in and benefit 
from all aspects of the informal hearing 
process. See Chapter 2 for a more detailed 
discussion of reasonable accommodation 
requirements. 
If no method of conducting a remote 
informal hearing is available that 
appropriately accommodates an 
individual’s disability, the PHA may not 
hold against the individual his or her 
inability to participate in the remote 
informal hearing, and the PHA should 
consider whether postponing the remote 
hearing to a later date is appropriate or 
whether there is a suitable alternative. 
Due to the individualized nature of 
disability, the appropriate auxiliary aid or 
service necessary, or reasonable 
accommodation will depend on the 
specific circumstances and requirements.  
As with in-person reviews, Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) requirements also apply 
to remote informal hearings, including the 
use of interpretation services and 
document translation. See Chapter 2 for a 
more thorough discussion of accessibility 
and LEP requirements, all of which apply 
in the context of remote informal 
hearings. 
  
Conducting Informal Hearings Remotely 
The PHA must ensure that the lack of 
technology or inability to use technology 
for remote informal hearings does not 
pose a disadvantage to families that may 
not be apparent to the PHA. The PHA 
should determine through a survey or 
other means if these barriers exist prior to 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

conducting the remote informal hearing 
and, if the family does not have the proper 
technology to fully participate, either 
postpone the informal hearing or provide 
an alternative means of access. 
As with in-person informal hearings, the 
PHA must provide all materials presented, 
whether paper or electronic, to the family 
prior to the remote informal hearing. The 
family must also be provided with an 
accessible means by which to transmit 
their own evidence. 
The PHA’s essential responsibility is to 
ensure informal hearings meet the 
requirements of due process and comply 
with HUD regulations. Therefore, all PHA 
policies and processes for remote informal 
hearings will be conducted in accordance 
with due process requirements, and will 
be in compliance with HUD regulations at 
24 CFR 982.555 and the guidance for 
conducting remote hearings specified in 
Notice PIH 2020-32.  

PHA Policy 
The PHA will conduct remote 
informal hearings via a video 
conferencing platform, when 
available. If, after attempting to 
resolve any barriers, participants 
are unable to adequately access 
the video conferencing platform at 
any point, or upon request, the 
informal hearing will be conducted 
by telephone conferencing call-in. 
If the family is unable to 
adequately access the telephone 
conferencing call-in at any point, 
the remote informal hearing will be 
postponed, and an in-person 
alternative will be provided 
promptly within a reasonable time. 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

Prior to scheduling the remote 
hearing, the PHA will provide the 
family with login information 
and/or conferencing call-in 
information and an electronic copy 
of all materials being presented via 
first class mail and/or email. The 
notice will advise the family of 
technological requirements for the 
hearing and request the family 
notify the PHA of any known 
barriers. The PHA will resolve any 
barriers using the guidance in 
Section 6 of Notice PIH 2020-32, 
including offering the family the 
opportunity to attend an in-person 
hearing. 
The PHA will ensure that all 
electronic information stored or 
transmitted with respect to the 
informal hearing is secure, 
including protecting personally 
identifiable information (PII), and 
meets the requirements for 
accessibility for persons with 
disabilities and persons with LEP. 

16-
III.C. 

In cases where the PHA makes a decision for which an 
informal hearing must be offered, the notice to the 
family will include all of the following: 
The proposed action or decision of the PHA. 
A brief statement of the reasons for the decision, 
including the regulatory reference. 
The date the proposed action will take place. 
A statement of the family’s right to an explanation of the 
basis for the PHA’s decision. 
A statement that if the family does not agree with the 
decision the family may request an informal hearing of 
the decision. 
A deadline for the family to request the informal 
hearing. 
To whom the hearing request should be addressed. 
A copy of the PHA’s hearing procedures. 

In cases where the PHA makes a decision for 
which an informal hearing must be offered, the 
notice to the family will include all of the 
following: 
The proposed action or decision of the PHA. 
A brief statement of the reasons for the 
decision, including the regulatory reference. 
The date the proposed action will take place. 
A statement of the family’s right to an 
explanation of the basis for the PHA’s decision. 
A statement that if the family does not agree 
with the decision the family may request an 
informal hearing of the decision. 
A deadline for the family to request the informal 
hearing. 

Yes Provides clarity on how 
Informal remote Hearings 
are conducted 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

That the family may request a remote informal hearing 
If the PHA will require that the hearing be 
conducted remotely, at the time the notice is sent 
to the family informing them of the right to 
request an informal hearing, the family will be 
notified that the informal hearing will be 
conducted remotely. The family will be informed 
of the processes involved in a remote informal 
hearing and that the PHA will provide technical 
assistance, if needed, before the informal hearing 

To whom the hearing request should be 
addressed. 
A copy of the PHA’s hearing procedures. 
That the family may request a remote informal 
hearing 

16-
III.C. 

A request for an informal hearing must be made orally 
or in writing and delivered to the PHA either in person or 
by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no 
later than 14 business days from the date of the PHA’s 
decision or notice to terminate assistance.  
The PHA must schedule and send written notice of the 
informal hearing to the family within 14 business days of 
the family’s request. 
The family may request to reschedule a hearing for good 
cause, or if it is needed as a reasonable accommodation 
for a person with disabilities. Good cause is defined as 
an unavoidable conflict which seriously affects the 
health, safety or welfare of the family. Requests to 
reschedule a hearing must be made orally or in writing 
prior to the hearing date. At its discretion, the PHA may 
request documentation of the “good cause” prior to 
rescheduling the hearing. 
If the family does not appear within 20 minutes of the 
scheduled time, and was unable to reschedule the 
hearing in advance due to the nature of the conflict, the 
family must contact the PHA within 24 hours of the 
scheduled hearing date, excluding weekends and 
holidays. The PHA will reschedule the hearing only if the 
family can show good cause for the failure to appear, or 
if it is needed as a reasonable accommodation for a 
person with disabilities. If the family cannot show good 
cause for the failure to appear, or a rescheduling is not 
needed as a reasonable accommodation, the PHA’s 
decision will stand. 

A request for an informal hearing must be made 
orally or in writing and delivered to the PHA 
either in person or by first class mail, by the 
close of the business day, no later than 14 
business days from the date of the PHA’s 
decision or notice to terminate assistance.  
The PHA must schedule and send written notice 
of the informal hearing to the family within 14 
business days of the family’s request. 
If the PHA hearing will be conducted 
remotely, at the time the notice is sent to 
the family, the family will be notified: 
Regarding the processes involved in a 
remote informal hearing; 
That the PHA will provide technical 
assistance prior to and during the 
informal hearing, if needed; and 
That if the family or any individual 
witness has any technological, resource, 
or accessibility barriers, the family may 
inform the PHA and the PHA will assist the 
family in either resolving the issue or 
allow the family to participate in an in-
person hearing, as appropriate  
The family may request to reschedule a hearing 
for good cause, or if it is needed as a 
reasonable accommodation for a person with 
disabilities. Good cause is defined as an 
unavoidable conflict which seriously affects the 
health, safety or welfare of the family. Requests 
to reschedule a hearing must be made orally or 
in writing prior to the hearing date. At its 

Yes Provides clarity on how 
Informal remote Hearings 
are conducted 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

discretion, the PHA may request documentation 
of the “good cause” prior to rescheduling the 
hearing. 
If the family does not appear within 20 minutes 
of the scheduled time, and was unable to 
reschedule the hearing in advance due to the 
nature of the conflict, the family must contact 
the PHA within 24 hours of the scheduled 
hearing date, excluding weekends and holidays. 
The PHA will reschedule the hearing only if the 
family can show good cause for the failure to 
appear, or if it is needed as a reasonable 
accommodation for a person with disabilities. If 
the family cannot show good cause for the 
failure to appear, or a rescheduling is not 
needed as a reasonable accommodation, the 
PHA’s decision will stand. 

16-
III.C. 

The hearing will be conducted remotely or in-person.  
The PHA will compile a hearing packet, consisting of all 
documents the PHA intends to produce at the informal 
hearing. The PHA will mail copies of the hearing packet 
to the family, the family’s representatives, if any, and 
the hearing officer at least three days before the 
scheduled informal hearing. The original hearing packet 
will be in the possession of the PHA representative and 
retained by the PHA. 

The hearing will be conducted remotely or in-
person.  The PHA will compile a hearing packet, 
consisting of all documents the PHA intends to 
produce at the informal hearing. The PHA will 
mail copies of the hearing packet to the family, 
the family’s representatives, if any, and the 
hearing officer at least 14 business days 
before the scheduled informal hearing. The 
original hearing packet will be in the possession 
of the PHA representative and retained by the 
PHA. 

No Provides additional time 
for documentation to be 
provided to the family 

16-
III.C. 

For in-person or remote hearings, the PHA will not 
require pre-hearing discovery by the PHA of family 
documents directly relevant to the hearing. 
Copies of family documents will be presented at 
the time of the hearing.  Immediately following 
the hearing, family documents will be copied and 
dispersed to relevant PHA staff at the PHA’s 
expense.  
Documents will be shared electronically whenever 
possible. 

For in-person or remote hearings, the PHA will 
not require pre-hearing discovery by the PHA of 
family documents directly relevant to the 
hearing. 
If the informal hearing is to be conducted 
remotely, the PHA will require the family 
to provide any documents directly 
relevant to the informal hearing at least 
24 hours before the scheduled hearing . 
through the mail, via email, or fax. The 
PHA will scan and email copies of these 
documents to the hearing officer and the 
PHA representative the same day. 

No Provides clarity on how 
remote Informal Hearings 
are to be conducted 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

Documents will be shared electronically 
whenever possible. 

16-
III.C. 

Hearsay Evidence is evidence of a statement that 
was made other than by a witness while 
testifying at the hearing and that is offered to 
prove the truth of the matter. Even though 
evidence, including hearsay, is generally 
admissible, hearsay evidence alone cannot be 
used as the sole basis for the hearing officer’s 
decision.  
If either the PHA or the family fail to comply with the 
discovery requirements described above, the hearing 
officer will refuse to admit such evidence. 
Other than the failure of a party to comply with 
discovery, the hearing officer has the authority to 
overrule any objections to evidence. 

Hearsay Evidence is evidence based not 
on a witness’ personal knowledge. In and 
of itself, hearsay evidence carries no 
weight when making a finding of fact. The 
hearing officer may include hearsay 
evidence when considering their decision 
if it is corroborated by other evidence. 
Even though hearsay evidence is generally 
admissible in a hearing, the hearing 
officer will not base a hearing decision on 
hearsay alone unless there is clear 
probative value and credibility of the 
evidence, and the party seeking the 
change has met the burden of proof. 
If either the PHA (or the family, if required in 
a remote hearing) fail to comply with the 
discovery requirements described above, the 
hearing officer will refuse to admit such 
evidence. 
Other than the failure of a party to comply with 
discovery, the hearing officer has the authority 
to overrule any objections to evidence. 

No Provides clarity on the 
definition of Hearsay 
Evidence 

16-
VI.C. 

All applicant and participant information will be kept in a 
secure location and access will be limited to authorized 
PHA staff. 
PHA staff will not discuss personal family information 
unless there is a business reason to do so. Inappropriate 
discussion of family information or improper disclosure 
of family information by staff will result in disciplinary 
action. 

All applicant and participant information will be 
kept in a secure location and access will be 
limited to authorized PHA staff. 
PHA staff will not discuss personal family 
information unless there is a business reason to 
do so. Inappropriate discussion of family 
information or improper disclosure of family 
information by staff will result in disciplinary 
action. 
The family will be allowed to request any 
documents at a cost of $.25 per page. 

No Allows families access to 
information within their 
applicant and/or 
participant files 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

17-I.A. The PHA may project-base any units not subject to the 
20 percent cap. 

The PHA may project-base units not subject to 
the 20 percent cap in accordance with HUD 
regulations and requirements. 

No Provides clarity on how to 
exceed the 20% cap 

17-
II.A. 

The PHA will advertise its request for proposals (RFP) for 
rehabilitated and newly constructed housing in the 
following newspapers and trade journals. 
Register Guard 
In addition, the PHA will post the RFP and proposal 
submission and rating and ranking procedures on its 
electronic web site. 

The PHA will advertise its request for proposals 
(RFP) for rehabilitated and newly constructed 
housing in the following newspapers and trade 
journals. 
Register Guard 
The advertisement will state the number 
of vouchers available to be project-based, 
the type of units that will be considered, 
the submission deadline, and will note 
how to obtain the full RFP. 
Advertisements will also contain a 
statement that participation in the PBV 
program requires compliance with Fair 
Housing and Equal Opportunity (FHEO) 
requirements. 
In addition, the PHA will post the RFP and 
proposal submission and rating and ranking 
procedures on its web site. 

No Provides clarity on what 
will be advertised on the 
Request for Proposals for 
PBV 

17-
II.G. 

It is the PHA goal to select sites for PBV housing that 
provide for deconcentrating poverty and expanding 
housing and economic opportunities. In complying with 
this goal the PHA will limit approval of sites for PBV 
housing in census tracts that have poverty 
concentrations of 20 percent or less.   
However, the PHA will grant exceptions to the 20 
percent standard where the PHA determines that the 
PBV assistance will complement other local 
redevelopment activities designed to deconcentrate 
poverty and expand housing and economic opportunities 
in census tracts with poverty concentrations greater 
than 20 percent, such as sites in: 
A census tract in which the proposed PBV development 
will be located in a HUD-designated Enterprise Zone, 
Economic Community, or Renewal Community; 

It is the PHA goal to select sites for PBV housing 
that provide for deconcentrating poverty and 
expanding housing and economic opportunities. 
In complying with this goal the PHA will limit 
approval of sites for PBV housing in census 
tracts that have poverty concentrations of 20 
percent or less.   
However, the PHA will grant exceptions to the 
20 percent standard where the PHA determines 
that the PBV assistance will complement other 
local redevelopment activities designed to 
deconcentrate poverty and expand housing and 
economic opportunities in census tracts with 
poverty concentrations greater than 20 percent, 
such as sites in: 
A census tract in which the proposed PBV 
development will be located in a HUD-
designated Enterprise Zone, Economic 

No Provides clarity on which 
census tracts can exceed 
the 20% PBV cap 



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

Community, Choice Neighborhood, or 
Renewal Community; 

17-V.C. The PHA will consider adding contract units to the 
HAP contract when the PHA determines that 
additional housing is needed to serve eligible 
low-income families.  Circumstances may include, 
but are not limited to: 
The local housing inventory is reduced due to a 
disaster (either due to loss of housing units, or an 
influx of displaced families); and 
Voucher holders are having difficulty finding units 
that meet program requirements. 

The PHA will add units to the contract on 
a case-by-case basis to ensure the 
availability of affordable housing as long 
as the addition of units does not exceed 
allowable project caps. 

No Provides clarity on how to 
add additional units to 
PBV contracts 

18-V.D. The PHA will maintain the project-specific waiting list in 
accordance with all applicable civil rights and fair 
housing regulations found at 24 CFR 903.7(b)(2)(ii)-(iv). 
The PHA will provide applicants full information about 
each development, including an estimate of the wait 
time, location, occupancy, number and size of accessible 
units, and amenities like day care, security, 
transportation, and training programs at each 
development with a site-based waiting list. The system 
for selection will be consistent with all applicable civil 
rights and fair housing laws and regulations and may 
not be in conflict with any imposed or pending court 
order, settlement agreement, or complaint brought by 
HUD.  
The PHA will assess any changes in racial, ethnic 
or disability-related tenant composition at each 
PHA site that may have occurred during the 
implementation of the site-based waiting list, 
based on confirmed and accurate PIC occupancy 
data. At least every three years, the PHA will use 
independent testers to assure that the site-based 
system is not being implemented in a 
discriminatory manner. 
The PHA will give priority to participants moving under a 
VAWA emergency transfer from one PBV development to 
another in accordance with Section 18-VI.E. 

The PHA will maintain the project-specific 
waiting list in accordance with all applicable civil 
rights and fair housing regulations found at 24 
CFR 903.7(b)(2)(ii)-(iv). The PHA will provide 
applicants full information about each 
development, including an estimate of the wait 
time, location, occupancy, number and size of 
accessible units, and amenities like day care, 
security, transportation, and training programs 
at each development with a site-based waiting 
list. The system for selection will be consistent 
with all applicable civil rights and fair housing 
laws and regulations and may not be in conflict 
with any imposed or pending court order, 
settlement agreement, or complaint brought by 
HUD.  
The PHA will give priority to participants moving 
under a VAWA emergency transfer from one 
PBV development to another in accordance with 
Section 18-VI.E. 

No The change is in 
alignment with National 
best practices per Nan 
McKay. The assessment 
note in the previous policy 
are requirements of a 
Public Housing program 
but are not requirements 
of a Project Based 
Voucher program. The 
prior policy was never 
implemented as RAD is a 
recent addition to Homes 
for Good. Therefore, the 
impact is moot. This data 
is currently and will 
continue to be assessed 
on the Public Housing 
portfolio.  



Section Previous Policy Proposed Policy Required 
Change 

Impact 

18-V.E. Hayden Bridge  
Referrals received under this preference will be 
prioritized by date and time of referral. Preference will 
be given to: 
Displaced Family Preference (Fire or Natural Disaster) 
This preference applies to families who are displaced as 
a result of a fire or Natural Disaster.  Persons who claim 
they are being or have been displaced due to fire or 
Natural Disaster must be a resident of Lane County and 
have written verification from a Homes for Good 
approved entity. The definition of “displaced” for this 
purpose will be included in the MOU/MOA with the 
qualified entity. 

Hayden Bridge  
Referrals received under this preference will be 
prioritized by date and time of referral. 
Preference will be given to: 
Displaced Family Preference (Fire or Natural 
Disaster) 
This preference applies to families who are 
displaced as a result of a fire or Natural 
Disaster.  Persons who claim they are being or 
have been displaced due to fire or Natural 
Disaster must be a resident of Lane County and 
have written verification from a Homes for Good 
approved entity. The definition of “displaced” 
for this purpose will be included in the 
MOU/MOA with the qualified entity. 
Transitional Homeless Family Preference  
This preference applies to transitional 
housing persons who are homeless and 
who are referred from a Homes for Good 
approved entity (an entity with an active 
MOU/MOA with Homes for Good).  The 
definition of ‘homeless’ and ‘transitional’ 
for this purpose will be included in the 
MOU/MOA with the qualified entity. 

No Expands local preferences 
for Hayden Bridge 

 



Attachment B.2 New Activities 
 Demolition and/or Disposition 
Homes for Good is evaluating the remaining public housing portfolio to determine if Demo/Disposition or a RAD 
conversion is appropriate. Homes for Good has submitted a letter of interest (LOI) to HUD regarding the 
conversion of the remaining Public Housing Portfolio. If it is determined to be appropriate, Homes for Good may 
submit a Demo/Dispo application for a portion of its public housing portfolio. 

 
 Conversion of Public Housing to Project Based Assistance under RAD 
RAD was designed by HUD to assist in addressing the capital needs of public housing by providing access to 
private sources of capital to repair and preserve its affordable housing assets. Homes for Good submitted 
applications for participation in the RAD program in November of 2013 to convert 112 of its scattered sites to 
Project Based Vouchers (PBV).  Homes for Good submitted a revised multi-phase application in May of 2016 
which allowed conversion of 12 units into Richardson Bridge Apartments as part of a major rehabilitation and 
sold 12 units of scattered site housing and will transfer assistance to new sites which include  49 units at Sarang 
in Eugene and 51 units at Hayden Bridge Landing in Springfield. Homes for Good received a Commitment to 
enter into a Housing Assistance Payment (CHAP) for the remaining 100 units in August of 2018 for AMP 200 and 
300.  

AMP 200 Springfield Sites: AMP 200 OR000600200 included 20 scattered site units. A multi-phase application 
was approved in August 2016 for the initial phase that converted 3 units of public housing and transferred the 
assistance to Richardson Bridge (an existing Homes for Good development). The next phase converted the 
remaining 17 units to two new housing developments. Construction of the replacement housing began in the 
spring of 2020 and was completed in June of 2021 . Approximately three-quarters of the scattered sites have 
been sold and is expected to be completed by summer of 2022.  

AMP 300, Eugene Scattered Sites: AMP 300 OR000600300 includes 92 scattered site units. A multi-phase 
application was approved in August 2016 for the initial phase that converted 9 units of public housing and 
transferred the assistance to Richardson Bridge (an existing Homes for Good development). Homes for Good 
disposed of the 9 former PH units for affordable housing purposes in 2018. The next phase was to transfer the 
remaining 83 units to two new housing developments. Construction of the replacement housing began in the 
spring of 2020 and was completed in June of 2021. Approximately three-quarters of the scattered sites have 
been sold and is expected to be completed by summer of 2022 

Homes for Good is evaluating the remaining public housing portfolio to determine if Demo/Disposition or a RAD 
conversion is appropriate. Homes for Good submitted a letter of interest (LOI) to HUD regarding the conversion 
of the remaining Public Housing Portfolio in the fall of 2018. 

 Project Based Vouchers  
Homes for Good has 159 units of Project Based Voucher (PBV) across five Projects and 112 units of Rental 
Assistance Demonstration (RAD) PBV across three Projects and 5 units of VASH PBV in 1 project. These are all 
owned by Homes for Good. Homes for Good is intending to enter into contracts for Project Based Vouchers for 
The Coleman which will contain 18 PBV vouchers. This project is also owned by Homes for Good. In addition, 
Homes for Good also intends to enter into PBV Contracts for two projects owned by entities outside of Homes 
for Good. 11th and Lincoln, is a 59 unit complex in Eugene that will contain 13 PBV units and Shore Pines at 
Munsel Park is a 68 unit complex in Florence that will contain 31 PBV units.   



For Attachment B.3 Progress Report 
Goal 1 Objective:  

Increase the number of affordable housing units 

Indicator FY21 Progress FY22 Progress 
Create 300 new affordable housing units. 
 

Homes for Good recently completed Market District 
Commons (50 units), The Commons on MLK (51 
units), Sarang (49 units), Hayden Bridge Landing (70 
units), Legion Cottages (4 units) and the Keystone (15 
units.) 

The Nel (45 units) began construction in May of 
2021 and be complete in summer of 2022. 
Funding application for The Coleman (52 units) 
being submitted in Spring of 2022. 

Increase number of permanent supporting housing 
units. 
 
(Featured projects: The Commons on MLK, Legion 
Cottages Tiny Homes, The Keystone, The Nel) 

66 of the units recently completed  are Permanent 
Supportive Housing, including The Keystone (15 units 
PSH) and the Commons on MLK (51 units PSH). 

The Nel (45 units PSH) will begin construction in May 
2021. 

Maintain public housing vacancies at 3% or less. Public Housing continues to maintain an occupancy 
rate of 97% across the portfolio, with higher vacancies 
associated with the RAD resident relocations. 

Public Housing continues to maintain an average 
occupancy of above 97% (98.5% for FY21 YTD). 

Award of 33 mainstream vouchers that serve 
disabled and homeless or at risk of homelessness 
persons. 
 

We received an additional allocation of 75 Mainstream 
Vouchers on April 1, 2021, bringing our total allocation 
of Mainstream Vouchers to 151. Effective March 2021 
we expanded access to Mainstream vouchers to all 
non-elderly disabled persons on our waiting list, while 
also still continuing our work with partner agencies to 
distribute the vouchers 

As of March 2022, we have 139 Mainstream 
vouchers in use. In May 2022 we will apply for an 
additional 200 Mainstream Vouchers. We will also 
apply for extraordinary Administrative Fees. If 
awarded, the $500.00 per voucher fee will aid with 
move in costs, such as security deposits.  

Collaborative community initiative to provide 
technical support funding to ensure 100% 
utilization of all 236 VASH vouchers in Lane County. 
 

 As of March 2021, 222 VASH vouchers are under 
lease. 46 VASH recipients have been issued vouchers 
and are searching for housing. CARES Act funds were 
obtained to provide deposit assistance for VASH 
voucher holders. Homes for Good is now meeting with 
local agencies on a monthly basis to collaborate on the 
use of all VASH vouchers. 
 

 
As of March 2022, 232 VASH vouchers are under 
lease. We continue to meet monthly with the VA 
Team to collaborate on the utilization of the 
vouchers. We have also piloted a Remote Video 
Inspection (RVI) project with the VA. RVI, an 
initiative deployed by HUD in response to COVID-19 
provides a process for in field proxy inspectors to 
connect via video platform within office Housing 
Quality Standard Inspection staff to complete 
required HUD inspections.  

 

  



Goal 2 Objective: Continue to receive high performer status 

Indicator FY21 Progress FY22 Progress 
Homes for Good received high performer status for 
FY18 SEMAP. 

. Homes for Good will not be submitting a FY21 SEMAP 
assessment. In accordance with the Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act (Public Law 
116-136), HUD will not issue a new SEMAP score. HUD 
will instead carry forward the most recent SEMAP 
score on record. The most recent SEMAP score for 
Homes for Good is high performer status. 
 

Homes for Good will not be submitting a FY22 
SEMAP assessment. In accordance with the 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security 
(CARES) Act (Public Law 116-136), HUD will not 
issue a new SEMAP score. HUD will instead carry 
forward the most recent SEMAP score on record. 
The most recent SEMAP score for Homes for Good 
is high performer status. 
 

Obligate all capital funds within 24 months of grant 
award. 

Homes for Good has met all capital fund awarding 
requirements as well as financial submission 
requirements.  

Homes for Good has met all capital fund awarding 
requirements as well as financial submission 
requirements. Expend all capital funds within 48 months of grant 

award. 
Comply with the financial reporting requirements 
of asset management. 

Homes for Good continues to receive high performer 
status. 

Homes for Good continues to receive high performer 
status. 

Comply with the new PHAS requirements (when 
published) to continue to receive high performer 
status. 
Submit all PHAS reports within required timelines. 
Meeting all capital fund, financial reporting, and 
PHAS reporting requirements. 

 

  



Goal 3 Objective: Improve community quality of life and economic vitality 

Indicator FY20 Progress FY21 Progress 
Creation of a Housing Liaison position that will 
provide education and advocacy to persons searching 
for housing. Once housed, the Housing Liaison’s 
continued education and advocacy supports will 
increase housing stability. 

Homes for Good Housing Liaison has assisted over 
100 participants in challenges related to lease up with 
their Housing Choice Voucher program and has 
implemented participant and partner education 
related to housing navigation. 

Homes for Good Housing Liaison has continued to 
participants in challenges related to lease up with 
their Housing Choice Voucher program and has 
worked to adapt provided participant and partner 
education related to housing navigation. 

Continue to encourage and promote resident 
involvement in the Resident Advisory Board by 
maintaining and expanding the number of 
representatives from public and assisted housing, as 
well as the Section 8 program. 

The Resident Advisory Board (RAB) continues to be 
actively engaged in the annual plan process and 
includes members from all PHA subsidy programs. 

The Resident Advisory Board (RAB) continues to be 
actively engaged in the annual plan process and 
includes members from all PHA subsidy programs. 
 

Enhance the customer service experience across 
agency programs by simplifying and aligning 
processes, providing access to services staff and by 
connecting participants to needed resources in the 
community. 

 Homes for Good continues to work to streamline 
and simplify agency processes and increasing 
availability of Resident Services and other support 
staff.  

Enhance resident and agency communication 
through Resident Newsletters, improved website 
access, email communication and social media. 

All communities continue to receive a monthly or 
quarterly residential newsletter. 

All communities continue to receive a monthly or 
quarterly residential newsletter as well as more 
frequent resident updates related to COVID-19 and 
Agency operations which are posted and emailed 
to all residents.  
 

Annually monitor income levels by development and 
provide targeted support to deconcentrate poverty. 
Bring higher income PH households into lower income 
developments and vice versa, if necessary. 

Homes for Good continues to monitor 
deconcentration strategies and use of preferences to 
meet deconcentration goals. 

Homes for Good continues to monitor 
deconcentration strategies and use of preferences 
to meet deconcentration goals. 
 

Continue giving preferences to elderly/disabled 
applicants at Parkview Terrace, Veneta Villa, 
Cresview Villa, Riverview Terrace, McKenzie Village 
(one-bedroom units), Lindeborg Place, and 
Laurelwood Homes (one-bedroom units).  

  

 

  



Goal 4 Objective: Promote self-sufficiency and asset development of households served through public and assisted housing as well as the 
Section 8 homeownership program 

Indicator FY20 Progress FY21 Progress 
Expand access to the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) 
program to reach enrollment of 200 households or 
more.  

Homes for Good Family Self-Sufficiency program 
currently has 149 households enrolled 

Homes for Good Family Self-Sufficiency program 
currently has 128 households enrolled and have 
worked to adapt recruitment and intake to meet 
COVID-19 precautions. 

Maintain a minimum representation of 15 community 
services agencies on the Family Self-Sufficiency 
Advisory Board. 

and has increased participation on the FSS Advisory 
Board to over 18 community partners. 

The FSS Advisory Board continues to grow with 
new organizations joining each year. Currently 
there are over 20 community partners engaged 
with this board.  

Continue promotion of the FSS program through 
annual mailings of FSS informational brochures to all 
Section 8 and Public Housing residents. 

FSS information is included in all HCV and PH intake 
processes, as well as annual mailings with the annual 
packet. 

FSS information is included in all HCV and PH intake 
processes, as well as annual mailings with the 
annual packet. Info Sessions have moved from 
monthly to every other week to increase availability 
and attendance.  

Assist a minimum of two FSS participants a year in 
purchasing a home. 

FSS has assisted 3 participants to purchase homes 
this year. 

FSS has assisted 2 participants in purchasing 
homes this year and are working with several more 
to hopefully complete purchases by the end of the 
fiscal year. 

Assist a minimum of ten FSS participants in opening 
an Individual Development Account (IDA) for a down 
payment on a home. 

FSS has assisted 11 residents to open IDA’s. FSS has assisted 6 households in opening IDA’s this 
year. Funding for this opportunity has decreased 
this year but we are hopeful that it will return to 
pre-pandemic levels by the start of the fiscal  year.  

 

  



Goal 5 objective: To provide decent, safe and sanitary housing for very low-income families while maintaining their rent payments at an 
affordable level. 

Indicator FY21 Progress FY22Progress 
Complete the Rent Assistance Demonstration 
construction and sale of scattered site homes.  

Homes for Good has completed the RAD new 
construction.  

Homes for Good has completed construction of the 
replacement housing and has completed the 
majority of the scattered site sales.  

Focus preservation efforts communicating with local, 
state and national funders to help preserve affordable 
housing opportunities. 

RAD Replacement Housing at Sarang and Hayden 
Bridge Landing was complete in June 2021. 

Sale of the scattered site homes is ongoing and will 
be complete in mid-2022. 

The Landlord Liaison continues with community 
engagement, providing routine educational seminars 
for landlords and supportive service organizations. 
Expansion of classes include courses specifically 
focused on housing quality standard guidelines, thus 
giving landlords the education and tools needed to 
prepare for successful housing inspections under 
HUD requirements. 

 The Landlord Liaison provides routine education on 
accessing housing through Homes for Good to both 
landlord and community partners. The Landlord 
Liaison is engaged in a pilot Remote Video Inspection 
(RVI) program in partnership with our local VA office. 
The RVI process allows for remote video inspections 
with VA staff serving as proxy inspectors. 
 

The Landlord Liaison continues to provide routine 
education on accessing housing through Homes for 
Good to both landlord and community partners. 
The Landlord Liaison continues its engagement in 
a pilot Remote Video Inspection (RVI) program in 
partnership with our local VA office. The RVI 
process allows for remote video inspections with VA 
staff serving as proxy inspectors.  
 

Partnered with NEDCO to provide zero interest loans 
for security deposits to Section 8 and VASH families.  
 

 Homes for Good continues its partnership with 
DevNW in administering zero interest loans to tenant 
based voucher recipients. Over the course of FY20 
14 loans were issued. 
 

Homes for Good continues its partnership with 
DevNW in administering zero interest loans to 
tenant based voucher recipients. For FY21 and as 
of April FY22, 17 loans have been requested.  10 
were approved. 3 families have paid the loans back, 
2 families defaulted and 5 are actively paying the 
loan back.  
 

 

  



Goal 6 objective: To promote a housing program that maintains quality service and integrity while providing an incentive to private property 
owners to rent to very low-income families 

Indicator FY21 Progress FY212Progress 
Increase success of Section 8 participants, 
particularly those coming out of homelessness or 
transitioning from permanent supportive or 
transitional housing through engagement with the 
Housing Liaison 

 Homes for Good has expanded local preference 
provider partnerships to thirteen community 
agencies. These agencies work with high barrier 
populations to access housing. The Landlord Liaison 
provides education to local preference partners on 
accessing housing through Homes for Good. Several 
community partners also have access to EHA funds 
which aid with deposits and other move in related 
costs. As of February 2021, success rate for 
utilization of a tenant based voucher was 78%. 
 

 The Landlord Liaison continues to provide 
education to local preference partners. Homes for 
Good has expanded partnerships and now has 22 
local preference partners. Homes for Good 
received 184 Emergency Housing Vouchers (EHV). 
These vouchers are to serve homeless person, 
persons fleeing domestic violence and persons 
fleeing human trafficking. As of March 2022, we 
have 91 vouchers in use.  18 PHAs across Oregon 
were awarded EHV. Homes for Good has issued 
and utilized more EHV vouchers than any other 
PHA in the state. These funds also provide a $2K 
per household assistance option for items such as 
move in costs and essential household items. As of 
April 1, 2022 $102,891.00 has been utilized  to 
assist 78 families. 

Grown the Landlord Liaison offerings of support for 
landlords through continuous communication, 
trainings and sharing resources 
Awarded funding to provide monetary incentives to 
landlords who agree to rent to persons with high 
housing barriers  

Maintain a professional working relationship with 
landlords/owners in our community through 
education and seminars on the Section 8 program 

The Housing Liaison has initiated a quarterly Housing 
Navigator meetup to support local Housing 
Navigators in increasing the success of their 
participants who are seeking to lease up with their 
Section 8 voucher and is in the process of initiating 
a lease up support group to help participants in 
building their housing portfolio, searching for 
housing and leasing up in available units. 

The Housing Liaison continues to facilitate a 
quarterly Housing Navigator meetup to support 
local Housing Navigators in increasing the success 
of their participants who are seeking to lease up 
with their Section 8 voucher and is in the process 
of initiating a lease up support group to help 
participants in building their housing portfolio, 
searching for housing and leasing up in available 
units. 

Monitor the payment standards and area rents on the 
private market to keep Section 8 families’ portion of 
rent affordable and allow the Agency to serve the 
same number of families as in previous years. 

A rent study was completed for the 2020 Fair Market 
Rents. Homes for Good received a 12% increase to 
the FMRs, which directly impact the Payment 
Standards utilized by those receiving tenant-based 
subsidies. This increase will expand housing stock 
(will now be able to qualify for units they once could 
not afford) and the dollar amount (more funds to 
each household) of assistance Homes for Good 
provides. Success rate for utilization of vouchers for 
02/2019 was 69%. It grew to a success rate of 78% 
by 02/2021. Some of this growth in success rate can 
be contributed to the increase in Payment Standards. 
In addition, rent burden for families has decreased. 
Prior to the FMR study 16.7% of 4-bedroom families 
were paying 41% or more of their income towards 

At time of setting the Payment Standards for CY22, 
3.2% of 4-bedroom families were paying more 
than 41% of their income towards rent. A 1.6% 
decrease since FMR study implementation. As of 
03/2022 success rate for tenant-based voucher 
utilization was 62%. In 02/2022 utilization was at 
70%. Some of this fluctuation can be attributed to 
lack of housing stock and the impacts COVID-19 
has had on the community as a whole.   



rent. Post FMR study 4.8% of 4-bedroom families are 
paying 41% or more of their income towards rent. 
 

A Homes for Good staff member serves on the board 
for the local Rental Owners association 

 The Rent Assistance Division Director, Beth Ochs 
continues to serve on the board of the Rental 
Owner’s Association (ROA). The Landlord Liaison 
attends general membership meetings and 
contributes articles to the ROA’s monthly newsletter 
which is distributed to 1180 members representing 
18,617 rental units. 
 

The Rent Assistance Division Director, Beth Ochs 
continues to serve on the board of the Rental 
Owner’s Association (ROA). The Landlord Liaison 
attends general membership meetings and 
contributes articles to the ROA’s monthly 
newsletter which is distributed to over 1200 
members representing over 18,000 rental units. 
The Landlord Liaison also provides routine 
educational seminars for ROA members on aspects 
of the housing subsidy process. We have also 
obtained the credentials to issue Continuing 
Education Credits (CEUs) to participating 
Landlords.  
 

 





 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

 
FROM: Steve Ochs, Development Director 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: In the Matter of Approving, Accepting a Bid, and Awarding Contract   

#22-C-0016 for the Lindeborg Place Siding & Paint Project 
 
AGENDA DATE: May 25, 2022 

I MOTION 
 
It is moved that Proper Built, Inc. be awarded contract #22-C-0016 for the Lindeborg Place Siding & 
Paint project and that an order to this effect be signed, and an agreement be executed in accordance 
with bid documents. 

 
II ISSUE 
 

Lindeborg Place, located in Junction City, Oregon, is a two-story apartment complex comprised 
of 40 one-bedroom units serving seniors and people with disabilities.  
  
Since its construction in 1967, there have been tremendous improvements in building science 
and materials. The metal lap siding installed at the time of construction does not meet the 
standards of today, and requires upgrading to Hardi-plank style siding, which is more resilient 
and effective in maintaining the building envelope. In conjunction with the siding replacement, 
the building will receive a full exterior paint. The funding for the exterior improvements project 
will be provided through a combination of the Capital Fund Program FY 20 grant and (American 
Rescure Plan Act) (ARPA) funds received via Lane County. 
 
The ARPA funding was provided to the project based on recommendations made by Senator 
Mannings office, which represents North Eugene, West Eugene, Santa Clara, and Junction City. 
This project funding was championed by the late Lawanda Manning. Lawanda was a passionate 
advocate for housing opportunities dedicated to the betterment of her community, and was a 
kind and amazing person. We are humbled by her contribution to the project. 
 
The Agency followed the required procurement process for projects estimated to be over 
$100,000. The Request for Bids was published in The Register-Guard on April 2, 2022, on the 
Homes for Good website on April 9, 2022, and sent to various plan centers and specific 
contractors targeted for this type of work. The Agency received five (5) bids. The apparent low 
bidder was Proper Built, Inc. and their price was comparable to the Agency’s Independent Cost 
Estimate for this project. 
  
Proper Built, Inc. will begin work late June of 2022 with a completion date set for December 
2022. 



 
 
III DISCUSSION 
 

A. Background 
 

A formal bid process with a bid package was issued by the Agency for the required work.  Five (5) bids 
were obtained, and four (4) bids were both responsive and responsible. Responsive bid means a timely 
submitted bid which conforms in all material respects to the requirements set forth in the Invitation for 
Bids. A responsible bidder relates to the bidder's ability to satisfactorily perform the work.The lowest 
responsive bidder reviewed their bid and confirmed their costs. 
 
The public bidding process was employed; the lowest responsive and responsible bid has no 
irregularities. The prices are considered competitive and in range of the Agency’s independent cost 
estimate, therefore award of the contract to Proper Built, Inc. is recommended. 
 
The total amount of this bid is $180,000.00 Proper Built, Inc. will provide performance and payment 
bonds for this contract.  

 
B. Recommendation 
 

Approval of the proposed motion. 
 
IV IMPLEMENTATION/FOLLOW-UP 
 

Upon approval of the Order, the required documents will be executed as soon as possible. 
  
V ATTACHMENTS 
 
II   Exhibit A: Bid Results Record 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
EXHIBIT A: 

 
Bid Results Record 



 

 



 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

 

 
ORDER 22-25-02-01H  
 

In the Matter of Accepting a Bid and Awarding 
Contract #22-C-0016 for the Lindeborg Place 
Siding & Paint Project. 

 

WHEREAS, a Request for Bids of the Lindeborg Place Siding & Paint Project was published 
in The Register Guard on April 2, 2022, and April 9, 2022; published on the Homes for Good 
website; and sent to various plan centers and specific contractors; and 

WHEREAS, at a duly publicized time and place on April 28, 2022, Teresa Hashagen of 
Homes for Good Housing Agency, opened bids on the following project: 22-C-0016 Lindeborg 
Place Siding and Paint; and 

WHEREAS, Proper Built, Inc is the apparent low bidder for this project, and the bid 
submitted by Proper Built, Inc is comparable to the Agency’s Independent Cost Estimate for the 
project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the bid submitted by Proper Built, Inc has no irregularities and is responsive 

and responsible; and 
 

WHEREAS, Capital Funds and ARPA funds are available to finance the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director recommends award of the contract to Proper Built, 

Inc; 
 

NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT: that the Executive Director or Deputy Director is 
authorized to enter into a Construction Contract with Proper Built, Inc for the Lindeborg Place 
Siding and Paint Project in the amount of $180,000.00. The contractor shall present a valid signed 
contract with payment and performance securities in accordance with bid and contract 
requirements and shall satisfactorily complete all work within the specified contract time. 
 
 DATED this                day of                                             , 2022 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________   
Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners    
 





Equitable Contracting 
Initiative 



SECTION 3 

Section 3 Business 
Concern

At least 51% owned and 
controlled by low- or very 

low-income persons
OR

Over 75% of the labor 
hours performed for the 
business over the prior 
three-month period are 
performed by Section 3 

workers
OR

A business at least 51% 
owned and controlled by 
current public housing 

residents or residents who 
currently live in Section 8-

assisted housing 

Section 3 Worker

The worker’s income from 
the previous annualized 

calendar year is below the 
income limit established by 

HUD 
OR

The worker is employed by 
a Section 3 business 

concern 
OR

The worker is YouthBuild
participant 

Section 3 Resident

Public housing resident
OR

Low- or very low-income 
person residing in the 
metropolitan area or Non-
Metropolitan County where 
Section 3 covered 
assistance is expended

Ensure preference for employment, 
training and contracting 
opportunities  to local low- and 
very low-income persons



SECTION 3 GOALS 

Incorporate Section 3 
in existing 

Procurement Policy
Adopt a Section 3 
Contracting Policy 

Establish and assist 
with employment and 

training goals for 
contractors and 

subcontractors to meet 

Certification of Section 
3 participants 

Develop strategies to 
increase Resident 

hiring, training and 
recruitment

Document and report 
all actions 



MWESB
SDVBE

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

Emerging Small Businesses

Minority Business Enterprise

Women Business Enterprise

Service-Disabled Veteran Business 
Enterprise

Ensure preference for employment, 
training and contracting 
opportunities  to MWESB/SDVBE



MWESB GOALS

Incorporate MWESB in 
existing Procurement 

Policy
Adopt a Section 3 
Contracting Policy 

Establish and assist 
with employment and 

training goals for 
contractors and 

subcontractors to meet 

Identify existing 
COBID and possible 

COBID firms

Develop plan to 
increase marketing 

strategies 
Meet OHCS reporting 

requirements



HOMES FOR GOOD 
Apprenticeship program preference

Giving back / Local priority 

DEI Prioritization

Additional Requirements 



IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Internal 

Includes Section 3, MWESB and HFG Additional 
Requirements program info

Language to be sourced from policies and 
strategies matrix



PROGRAM GUIDE 

External 
Designed to 

be web 
published



PARTNERSHIP PIPELINE

OAME Centro 
Latino DevNW

Lane 
WorkSource

City of 
Eugene

City of 
Springfield

This is just our starting point for partnership… we will continue to 
seek out new partners beyond who is listed here! 


	May 25th board table of contents
	22_25_05  Homes for Good Agenda 
	Executive Director Report May 2022
	HFG Board Minutes 4.27.2022
	FY23 PHA Annual Plan Public Hearing signed
	FY23 Homes for Good PHA Annual Plan Small Book
	Small Book Cover Page
	Inside Cover
	50075-HP
	Attachment B.1 Revision of PHA Plan Elements
	Attachment B.1.a Key Modifications ACOP FY23
	Attachment B.1.b Key Modifications Admin Plan FY23
	Key modifications to The Homes for Good
	Rent Assistance Administrative Plan Fiscal Year 2023
	Effective date 10-1-2022 to 9-30-2023
	Proposed changes to the following chapters
	Key modifications to The Homes for Good
	Administrative Plan for the Housing Choice Voucher Program (Admin Plan)
	Proposed Effective date 10-1-2022

	Attachment B.2 New Activities
	Attachment B.3 Progress Report

	Agenda Checklist- #22-C-0016  Lindeborg Siding & Paint Project signed
	Homes for Good Board Memo- #22-C-0016  Lindeborg Siding  Paint Project
	I MOTION
	II ISSUE
	III DISCUSSION
	A formal bid process with a bid package was issued by the Agency for the required work.  Five (5) bids were obtained, and four (4) bids were both responsive and responsible. Responsive bid means a timely submitted bid which conforms in all material re...
	The public bidding process was employed; the lowest responsive and responsible bid has no irregularities. The prices are considered competitive and in range of the Agency’s independent cost estimate, therefore award of the contract to Proper Built, In...
	The total amount of this bid is $180,000.00 Proper Built, Inc. will provide performance and payment bonds for this contract.
	IV IMPLEMENTATION/FOLLOW-UP
	V ATTACHMENTS

	Homes for Good Board Order- #22-C-0016  Lindeborg Siding & Paint Project
	05.25.22 Board Agenda Checklist
	Equitable Contracting Board Presentation
	Equitable Contracting Initiative 
	SECTION 3 
	SECTION 3 GOALS 
	MWESB�SDVBE
	MWESB GOALS
	HOMES FOR GOOD 
	IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
	PROGRAM GUIDE 
	PARTNERSHIP PIPELINE




